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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited (“the Company™,
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financiat statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 53 of the financial statements which describes the impact of economic and social
consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's business and financial metrics which continue o be
dependent on uncertain future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, inour professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, These matiers were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have determined the matiers described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financiat statements
section of our report, inciuding in relation to these matters. Accordingty, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of materiai misstatement of the financial statements.

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(as described in note 2.7 of the financial statements)

tmpairment of Financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loan receivables (financial
instruments) using the expected credit loss (ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions, and forecasts
of future economic conditions which could impact the
credit guality of the Company's loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement has
been appiied by the management for:

a. Defining qualitative/ guantitative thresholds for
‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR™) and
‘default’.

b. Grouping of loan portfolic under homogenous
pools to determine probability of default on a
collective basis.

¢. Estimating recoveries to determine loss given
default on a coliective basis for loans that have
defaulted.

d. Determining effect of less frequent past events
on future probability of defaulit,

Additional considerations on account of CoVID-19
Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular dated
March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 ("RBI circular')
allowing fending institutions to offer a moratorium to
customers on payment of instaiments falling due
between March 1, 2020 and Augusf 31, 2020 read
with advisory issued by the Microfinance tnstitutions
Network dated March 30, 2020 ("MFIN advisory™), the
Company has extended a moratorium to its borrower
in accordance with its Board approved policy as
described in Note 53.

In accordance with the guidance from Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, extension of the
moratorium to borrowers by itself is not considered to
result in a SICR for a borrower. The Company in the
future will need to evaluate from time to time whether
to whom moratorium was granted under the packages
announced by the Governament of India ("GOI'") will be
regular. The Company has considered internal and
external sources of information available including
indicators of deterioration in the macro-economic
factors. Further, the management has estimated the
impact of the ongoing second wave of the pandemic
on its loan portfolio, based on reasonable and
supportable information available tili date and
considering performance after the first wave. Given
the unique nature and scale of this pandemic, its full
extent of impact on the Company's operations and
financial metrics, more specificaily on the borrower's
ability to service their obligations on a timely basis,
will depend on the severity and duration of the
pandemic as well as on highly uncertain future

Our audit procedures included, among others,

Considering the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of Joan receivables, assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of ind AS 109
and the governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of
India guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

Tested the assumptions used by the Company for
staging of loan portfolio into various categories and
default buckets for determining the Probabiiity of
Default ("PD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD')
rates.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the controis
for staging of ioans based on their past-due status.
Tested samples of performing (stage 1) foans to
assess whether any loss indicators were present
reguiring them to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Tested the input data used for determining the PD
and LGD rates and compared the data with the
underfying books of accounts and records.

Performed inguiries with the Company's
management and its risk management function to
assess the Impact of {ock-down on the business
activities of the Company.

Reviewed the Company’'s policy with respect to
moratorium pursuant to the RBI circular and MFIN
advisory and tested the implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

Assessed the additional considerations applied by
the management for staging of loans as SICR/
default in view of Company's policy on moratorium.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors
(including CoVID-19 pandemic) in accordance with
the governance framework approved by the Board
of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of India
guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL  provision performed by the Company in
spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of expected credit fosses with
the requirements of ind AS 107 and 109, Reviewed
specific  disclosures made in the financial
statements with regards to the impact of CoVID-19
and its impact on ECL estimation and other
disclosures as prescribed by RBl relating to
moratorium granted.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
developments including governmentai and regulatory
measures and the Company's responses thereto.
Accordingly, the management's estimate of
impairment losses based on various variables and
assumptions could result in actual credit loss being
different than that being estimated.

Given the high degree of management's judgement
involved in estimation of ECL, accentuated by the
considerations for CoVID-19 related developments, it
is a key audit matter,

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement thereln, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and to comply with the relevant applicable
requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor's responsibility in relation to other information in documents
containing audited financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resuiting frem error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internpal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report tc the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our repert because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1.

As reguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1”7 a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(D) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{C) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

{Q) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided by
the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our cpinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which weould impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533

UDIN: 21094533AAAAETI772

irm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred fo in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on other legal and requlatory requirements’' of
our report of even date

Re: Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited

1))

an

diiiy

(v

v}

i)

(vii)

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies
were identified on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by
us, the title deeds of immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are heid in the name of
the company.

The Company's business does not invelve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause 3 (i) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)a), (b)
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable
and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of ciause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b)Y According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statufory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payabie.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given o us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-tax, service
tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has

(ix)

not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term foans were appiied for the purpose for which those were
raised, though idie/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilization were gainfully invested in
liquid assets payable on demand.
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xi

(xii)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according te the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year except for instances of cash embezziements by certain employees of

the company aggregating to an amount of Rs. 9,774,795 and out of which amount of Rs. 5,183,900 has been
recovered.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi} are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiD) of the order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by

us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheef,

(xv)

the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partiy
convertibfe debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are
not applicable fo the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 201.3.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us, we report that

the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fipg Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533

UDIN: 21094533AAAAETITTZ
Place of Signature: Gurugram

Date: May 26, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Fusion Micro Finance Private
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internat Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “'Guidance Note'™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouf whether adequate internal financial controis with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Qur audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controts with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial
controis with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audif evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasenable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit
preparation of financiat statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statemenis.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financiat Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financiat statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as ai March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra
Partner
Membership Number: 094533

UDIN: 21094533AAAAETS772
Piace of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 26, 2021




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limiied

Balanee Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Rs in millions unless etherwise stated)

Particuiars Notes Asal As
‘ ares March 31, 2020 Mareh 34, 2020
Assels
Financial assets
Cagh and cash equivalents 3 12,154.20 5,390,067
Bank baiances other than cash and cash equivalenis 4 1,198.306 278082
Trade receivables 5 27.93 3139
Loans [ 43,607.30 3342973
Investments i - 5.00
Gtiher financial assets 8 300.76 238.46
Non-financial Assels
Current tax assels (not) 9 1319.58 119.09
Dreferred tax assets (nel) 14 765.28 105,02
Property, plant and equipment 11 102.74 58.94
Intangible agsets 12 £.90 1,47
Right of use asset 13 78.19 -
Other non-fNinancial assets 14 23.09 33.31
Total assets 58,374.33 42,399.94
Liabilities and cquity
Liabilities
Financial liabikities
Trade payables 15 113.06 40.71
Debt securities 16 9,904.50 3,998.98
Borrowings (ether than debt securities) 17 33,250.79 24,571.58
Subordinated liabilities 18 1,167.2% 1,166.29
Other financial Habilites 19 1,205.98 513.28
Non-financial Babilitics
Current tax tiabilitics (net) 20 53.98 0.53
Provisions 21 80.76 5772
Other non-financial liabililies 22 19.50 61.96
Equity
Equitly share capital 231 790.37 789.50
Other equity 24 11,673.18 11,199,309
Total liabilities and cquity 58,379,313 42,399.94
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our reporl of even date

for 8.2, Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICALFim Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Amit Kabr,
Partner
Membership Number : 094533

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 26, 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
fusion Micro Finance Private Limited

CIN:U65100D1.1 %PTCUG 1287
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Devesh Sachdey
MD and CEG
DIN : 025474]1

I)eepg M}M{/

Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 206, 2021

Cdian,

Ratna Dharashree Vishwagiathan
Direcior
DIN : (7278291




Yusion Micro Finance Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

Parliculars

Notes

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
Inforest income 25 8,275.64 6,664.88
Fees and commissien income 26 719 34.64
Net gain on {air value chanpes 27 167.45 231.57
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under mmortised cost 28 10784 271.55
category
Total revenue from operations 8,558.12 7,202.64
Other income 29 172,76 100.47
‘Total income 8,730.88 7,5303.11
Expenses
Finanee costs 30 3,751.04 3.376.72
Impairment on financial instrements 31 2,207.80 926.99
Limployee benelits expenses 32 1,686.40 1,483.33
Depreciation and amor{ization 11413 38.94 23.76
Others expenses 33 478.719 490.36
Total expenses 8,162.97 6,303.16
Profit before tax 56791 999,85
Tax Expense;
Current lax 34 588.71 395.99
Deferred tax 34 (460.24) {92.14)
Profit for the year 439.44 696.10
Other comprehensive income
Items that will net be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains on defined benefil plans 0.04 646
Income tax effect on above (0.01) (1.40)
0.03 5400
Total comprehensive income for the year 439.47 701,16
Earnings per equily share ( eguily share par value of Rs.10 each)
Basic (Rs) 35 5.56 10.47
Diluted (Rs) 35 5.49 10,32
Significant accounting policics 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the [inancial statements

As per our report of even date

for 8.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Charteged Accountants

Partner
Membership Number : 094433

Place: Gurugram
Date ; May 26, 2021

“Pivesh Sachdev

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
(‘IN Ul SlOODI 1994PTC061287
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Statement of eash flows Tor the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs i millions unless otherwise stated}

IFor the year ended

For the year ended

3 TS . 9

Particulars March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020

k. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before Tax 567.91 999,95

Adpustments to reconcile profit hefore tax to net eash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 3894 25,76
Impairment of financial instroments 2,207 %0 026,99
Finance cost on fease liability 5.30 -
Provision for gratuity 17.90 19,17
Pravision for compensated absences 2031 15.40
Other provisions 2.73 {10.58)
Net gain on change in fair value of muiual funds (167.45) (231.57)
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amorlised cost category (128.15) (126.80)
Employee share based paynient expense 30,40 34.67
Amortisation of processing fees (5.88) 1.18
(Profit)/ioss on sule of assets (1.00) 0,08

Operating cash flow before working eapital ehanges 2,588.81 1,654.25

Maovement in working eapiral:

Inerease in loans & advances (12,374.28)

(5,623.03)

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 3.46 (25.30)
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets 47.95 (33.50)
Decrease/(increase) in other non- financial assets 10,22 (9.86)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,571.37 {12899
Increase/(decrease) i trade payables 72.36 {1.1N
Increase in other financial liability 668.07% 94.16
Increase in ather non-finaneial liability 17.54 15.46
Cash used in operations (7,394.,50) (7,058.02)
Income fax paid {535.75) {436.30)
Net eash (used in) operating activities (A) (7,930.25) (7,494.32)
1. Cash flow from invesfing activities
Purchase of propertly, plant and equipment (75.41) (29.57)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.99 -
Purchase of infangible assets (2.43}) (1.48)
Purchase of investments (43,330.00) (50,G14.24)
Procecds from sale of investimenis 43,502 .45 50,245.81
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 95.58 200,52
1L Cash flow from financing activifies
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 4.79 5,000.98
Repayment of debt securitics (660.53) (1,346.34)
Proceeds from debt securities 6,577.19 34871
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (20,036.34) (17,800.02)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 28,711.21 19,247.43
Payment of fease liability (4.12) -
Net ¢ash flow [rom financing activities (C) 14,592.20 5,450.76
Net (decrease)/inercase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ Q) 6,757.53 (1,843.04)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,396.67 1,239.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12.184.20 5,396.67

Note: For disclosures relating 1o change in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 40.

Cash flow from operating activities includes interest received of Rs. 6,755.39 millions {previous year Rs 6,051.16 millions) and interest paid of Rs. 3,646.87 millions

(previous year Rs 3,413.53 millions).
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying netes are an integral past of the financial statements
As per our reporl of even date

for S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Fustoa Micro Finance Private Limited
Stafement of Changes in cquity for the year ended Marels 31, 2021

A Equity share eapital
(R in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particalars As at Changes during As al Changes during the As at

k ) April §, 2019 tie FY 2619-20 Mareh 31, 2020 Y 20240-21 Mareh 31, 2021
Eauity share capital (fully paid up) 626,21 177,63 803,84 - #0384
Less: Treasury shares {1354 (4.74} (1828 487 (17.40)
Equity share capital (partly paid up) 3.0 1.84 3.94 - 144
Total 615.77 173,73 789,50 (.87 790,31

B Other equity

Reserves and Surplus Otlier Comprehensive

Income
Particulars . -
Secuities Employes stack Remeasurernent gaing Total
Statutory reserve  Treasury Shares N . . . Retained carnings on defined henefid
premiant option plan reserve
ans
Balance as at April 1, 2019 183.22 (63.78) 5,180.76 19.88 krit1! 1.48 5,642.77
Total comprehensive income for the year B B - - 696,10 3.06 70116
Issuc of cauity shares - 7817 4,907.04 - - 4,8270.87
sfer Lo / from retained carnings 13922 - - - {136.22) - -
¢ expenses - - (3.00) - - - {3.06)
1 compensation - - - 28214 - - 28.21
IExevcise and lapse of share options - 1.58 2,83 (4,26} 2.29 - 2.44
Balance as at March 31, 2020 32244 (141.37) 10,087.57 43.83 880.38 6,54 11,199,39
Balance as at April 1, 2020 322.44 (141.37) 10,087.57 43.83 580,38 6.54 11,199.39
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 439.44 0.03 430,47
Transfer to / fram retained carninps 8189 - - - (87.59) - -
Share based compensation - - - 30.40 ~ - 10.40
Lixercise und tapse of share options - 322 4.10 (5.7 2.36 - 3.9
Balance as at March 31, 2021 410.33 (138.15) 10,091.67 68,46 1,234.29 6,57 11,673.18

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repont of even dale
for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fusion Micre Finance Private Limited
CIN;UGS100DL1894PTCO61287
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
Ry in millions unless otherwise stated)

L.Corporate information

Fusion Micre Finance Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 05 September 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956.
The Company was registered as a Non-Banking Financial (Non - Deposit Accepting or Holding} Company (‘NBFC- ND*) under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 with effect from 19 May 2010. The Company got canverted to Non-Banking
Financial Company-Micro Finance Institution (‘NBFC-MFI*) with effect from 28 January 2014 with Registration No. B-14.02857.
The Company listed its Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs®) in Bombay Stock Exchange, India. The registered office of the
Company is in Delhi,

The Company is primarily engaged in micro finance lending activities, providing financial services to poor women in India who
are orgatized as Joint Liability Group (*31.Gs’). The Company provides smail value collateral free loans. Apart from micro finance
lending, the Company also have insignificant lending to MSME enterprises.

Company uses its distribution channel to provide other financial products and services to the members primarily relate to providing
of loans to the members for the purchase of certain productivity enhancing products such as mobile handsets, bicycle.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on May 26, 2021.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified by under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from tinie to time) and presentation requirements of Division
111 of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule ).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) instruments, plan assets, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair vatue. The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

Presentation of financial statements
The Company presents its batance sheet in order of liguidity.
The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They are only offset

and reported net, when in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without
being contingent on a future event, the parties also inlend to settle on a net basis in all of the foliowing circumstances:

A, The normal course of business.
B. The event of default.
C. The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company and/or its counterparties,

Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by Ind AS specifically.
2.Significant accounting policies

2.1 Recognition of income and expense

The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition ¢riteria must also

be met before revenue is recognized:

2.1.1 Interest income

Interest revenue is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate method. The effective interest method caleulates the amortized cost
of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income or inteyest expense over the relevant period,

'iﬁ?
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TFuasion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes o Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions uniess otherwise stated)

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than the credit
impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit impairved and is, therefore, regarded as *Stage 3°, the Company calcudates the interest income
by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortized cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer
credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income a gross basis.

2.1.1.1 The effective interest rate method

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured
at amortized cost, debt instrument measured at FVOCT and debt instruments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected tife of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortized cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition,
fees and transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life eycle (including
prepayments, penalty interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than eredit risk. The adjustment is

booked as a positive or negative adjustiment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction
in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortized through nterest income in the statement of profit and loss.

2.1.2 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, This is
generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

2.1.3 Netf gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost category

Where derecognition criteria as per Ind AS 109, including transaction of substantially ail the risks and rewards relating to assets
being transferred to the buyer being met, the assets have been derecognized, Income from assignment transactions i.e. present
value of excess interest spread is recognized. Refer Note 2.5 for policy on derecognition of financial assets.

2.1.4 Net Gain/Loss on fair value changes

The Company recognizes the fair value on investment in mutual funds in the statement of profit and loss in accordance with Ind
AS 109, -

2.1.5 Income from interest on deposits

Income from interest on deposits is primarily from deposits with bank and is recognized on a time proportion basis considering
the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

2.1.6 Inferest Expense

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized
over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other
expenses such as external legal costs, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial
liability.

W.wﬂjiw/




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

2.1.7 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which Ind AS 109 *Financial
Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Ind AS 115 *Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’. The Company identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the contract, determines
the transaction price and its atlocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory
completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

a) Facilitation tees income is earned by selling of services and products of other entities under distribution arrangements,
The income so earned is recognized on successful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant
uncettainty of its recovery,

b) Revenue from business correspondence services is recognized point in time when performance obligation is satisfied as
per agreed terms and conditions of the contract.

¢} The company recognizes revenue from market support services upon satisfaction of performance obligation by rendering
of services underlying the contract with third party custoniers

2.2 Financial Instruments— initial recognition

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrament
of another entity. Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

2.2.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and labilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognized on the
trade date, i.¢., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans are recognized
when funds are disbursed to the customer’s accounts. The Company recognises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when
funds reach the Company,

2.2.2 Inifial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business maodel for
managing the instruments, Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs are added 1o, subtracted from, this
amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.

2.2.3 Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual
terms, measured at either:

a)  Amortized cost, as explained in Note 2.3.1
b)  FVTPL as explained in Notes 2.3.4
¢)  FVOCI

The Company classifies and measures ifs trading portfolio at FVTPL. The Company may designate {inancial instruments at
FVTPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, are measured at FVTPL when they are derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied, as
explained in Note 2.3.4.




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Financial assets and liabilities

231 Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables, financial investments and other tinancial
assets at amortized cost

The Company measures cash and cash equivalents Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial investments and
assels at amortlized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect cantraciual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

2.3.1.1  Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective. The information considered includes:

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios
and is based on observable factors such as:

* How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and
reported to the entity's key management personnel.

® The risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that business model)} and,
in particular, the way those risks are managed.

*  How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

®  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company's
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

* The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash
flows through the sale of the assets;

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or stress case’ scenarios
into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations,
the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

_23.1.2 The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether they meet
the solely payments of principal and interest {(the *SPPI test’).

For the purposes of this test, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

‘Interest’ within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount ouistanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liguidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin. To make the SPP1 assessment, the Company applies judgement and




Fasion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Iinancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the interest
rate is set.

Where the business mode! is to hold assets fo collect coniractual cash {lows (i.e. measured at amorlized cost) or to collect
confractual cash flows and sell (i.e. measured at fair value through other comprehensive income), the Company assesses whether
the financial instruments’ cash flows represent SPPL In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financiat asset is
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as mentioned above, is computed using the effective
interest rate method.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized
cost s caleudated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from ECL impairment are
recoguized in the profit or loss.

2.3.2 Tinancial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as heid for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit
making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there
evidence of a recent pattern of shori-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the
balance sheet at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognized in net gain on fair value changes. Interest and dividend income or
expense is recorded in net gain on fair value changes according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been
established.

Included in this classification are equily instruments and mutual funds and that have been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term.

2.3.3  Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on funds issued, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A
compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date,

For the accounting treatment of financial instruments with equity conversion rights and call options, the Company first establishes
whether the instrument is a compound instrument and classifies such instrument’s components separately as financial liabilities or
equity mstruments in accordance with Ind AS 32. Classification of the liability and equity components of a convertible instrument
is not revised as a result of a change in the likelihood that a conversion option will be exercised, even when exercising the option
may appear to have become economically advantageous to some holders. When allocating the initial carrying amount of a
compound financial instrument to the equity and iability components, the equity component is assigned as the residual amount
after deducting from the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component. Once
the Company has determined the split between equity and liability, it further evaluates whether the liability component has
embedded derivatives that must be accounted for separately.

234 Financial assefs and financizl liabilities at fair value through profif or loss

Financial assets and financial Habilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by
management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only
designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

« The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
" the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investiment strategy

Or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited

2.4 Reclassification of financial asset and Habilities

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which
the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not
reclassify any of its financial assets or liabitities in 2020-21 and 2019-20.

2.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a patt of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either :

() the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{b) the Company has neither iransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the assct.

When the Compary has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the farm of a guaraniee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amountt of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o repay.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the eriginal

tability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
- statement of profit and loss..

2.6 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amaunt is reported in the baiance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right 1o offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liabifity simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’),

A
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2.7 Impairment of Financial Assets
271 Overview of principles for measuring expected credit loss ("ECL'} on financial assets.

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other delyt financial assets not held at FVTPL, in this
section all referred to as “financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset {the lifetime expected credif loss or
LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the
12 months® expected credit Joss (12mECL), The Company’s poticies for determining if there has been a significant increase in credit
risk are set out in Note 45 (e).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on
the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

Based on the above process, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1

When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities
where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. The Company has assessed that all standard
exposures (i.e. exposures with no overdues) and exposure up to 30 days overdues fall under this category.

Stage 2

When loan that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under this stage. Based on
empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than
30 days. Accordingly, the Company classifies ail exposures with overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this
Stage. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved,
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

The loans provided to borrowers having running businesses with steady cash flows and not as a concession to overcome finangial
difficulties faced by borrowers other than the temporary suspension due to lock-down, are not considered as restructured accounts
in terms of extant RBI Master Directions

Stage 3
Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an aliowance for the LTECLs. All exposures having overdue balances
for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified under this stage.

For financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding amount, or
a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial} derecognition of the
financial asset.

2,72 Methodology for calculating ECL

The Company calculates ECL based on a probability weighted outcome of factors indicated below to measure the expected cash
shortfalls. The Company does not discount such shortfalls considering relatively shorter tenure of foan contracts. A cash shortfall
is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive

Key factors applied to determine ECL are outlined as follows:
Probability of default (PD) — The probabiiity of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, A

default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognized and is still
in the portfolio.
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Exposure at default (EAD) — Exposure at default {EAI) is the sum of outstanding principal and the interest amount acerued but
not recetved on each loan as at reporting date.

Loss given default (LGD) — [t is an estimate of the loss arising when the event of default occurs. It is based on the difference

between the contractual cash flows due and those that the fender would expect to receive. It is usually expressed as a percentage
of the EAD.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that are accounted for
as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross canrying value

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is ¢alculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates
the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a EAD and muitiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance
for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple scenarios,
but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the iifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

2.7.3 Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit loss, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and me
operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, In{
Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by Reserve Bank of India, with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
in its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relatior
temporary overiays are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

2.7.4 Write-offs

Loans are written off in their entirety only when the Company has stopped perusing the recovery, This is generally the case when
the Company determines that the borrower dees not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows 10
repay the amounts subject to write-offs. If the amount o be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross canrying amount, Any subsequent
recoveries against such loan are credited to the statement of profit and loss,

2.7.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individoal asset, unless the asset does not generase cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. .
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2.8 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction fo sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or Hability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asse
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seling it to another market participant that would use the assct in its highest and
best use.

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instrumenis are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarised below:

* Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active
only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when
there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly
or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such Inputs include quoted prices for
similar assets or lHabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other
than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be
required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates 1o items that are comparable to the valued
instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the
Cornpany will classify the instruments as Level 3.

* Level 3 financial instruments — Inciudes one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity for the
assel/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole,

For assets and liabitities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between Jevels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies insrruments
when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

2.9 Foreign Currency fransactions
29.1 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}), which are the functional currency of the Company and the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
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2.9.2 Transaction and balance

Transactions in foreign currencies are initialty recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange ruling af the date of’
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot rate of
exchange at the reporting date. Alf differences arising on non-trading activities are taken to other income/expense in the statement
of profit and ioss.

Non-—-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the
date of recognition.

2.10 Leasing

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
conirol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Where the Company is lessee

The Company applies a singie recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

¢ Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initfal direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is caloulated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.
e Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease Habilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounis expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the tease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. ' '

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incrementat borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes
fo future payments resulting from a change in rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an

option to purchase the underlying asset.
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Short term lease

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
of 12 moenths or less from the commencement date and o not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognized as and when due.

2.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the bajance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.12 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—-to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment in value if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

I significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as a separate
items {major components) of property, plant and eguipment.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on straight line basis over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful life of
the assets, whichever is lower.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Property plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assef) is recognized in other income / expense in the staternent of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised,
Depreciation on propesty, plant and equipment provided on written down value method at the rate arrived based on useful life of

the assets, prescribed under schedule 1 of the act, which also represents the estimate of the useful life of the asseis by the
management.

Depreciation on assets sold during the year is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss up to the date of sale.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment.

Asset category Useful life (in years)
Furniture & Fixture 10
Electrical fittings 10
Computers & Printers 3
Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Q0PN
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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2.13 Intangible asscts

The Company’s intangible assets mainly include the Computer Software. An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can
be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable o it will flow to the
Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized
over the useful economic life, The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Computer software - 3-6 years

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
cansidered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is
derecognized,

2.14 Retirement and other Employee benefits
2.14.1 Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.14.2 Share-based payment arrangements

The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Schemes to be administered through a Trast. The scheme provides that
subject to continued employment with the Company, the employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company
that may be exercised within the specified period.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
vaiuation model. Further details are given in Note 41.

That cost is recognized in employee benefits expense over the period in which service conditions are fulfilled, together with a
corresponding increase in employee stock option plan reserve in other equity. The cumulative expense is recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired. The
expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
condilions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.




Fusion Micre Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

2.143 Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions 1o defined coniribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Post-employment
benefits in the form of provident fund , and other funds are defined contribution scheme.

The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and pension scheme. The Company
recoguises contribution payable to scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. [{ the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognized as a lHability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

2.144 Defined benefit plans

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting
the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit eredit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
{excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Net interest expense
(income) on the net defined liability (assefs) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability
(asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year afier taking into account any changes as a result of
contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or Joss, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates {o past service or
the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

2.145  Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences are a long-term employee benefit and are accrued based on an actuarial valuation done as per projected
unit eredit method as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
2,15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the
level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. The expense relating
to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
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2.16 Share issue expenses

Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue of an eguity instrument (i.e. they would have been avoided if the
instrument had not been issued) are deducted from equity.

2.17 Taxes
2.17.1 Current tax

Current tax assets and labilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
10 be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. It is computed using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
e has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and
» intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.17.2 Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabitities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaties, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry {forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, using tax rates (and tax laws) that have enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive

income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correfation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only it

o the entity has a legaily enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

» the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the
same taxable entity,

217.3 Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assefs are recognized net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

¢ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognized as past of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autherity is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.18 Earning per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS33 on Earnings per share. Basic earnings
per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year.

Forthe purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equily shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equily shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earings per share or increases loss per share are included.

2,19 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided (o the chiel operating decision
maker.

The CEO of the Company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker for the Company.
2.20 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A Contingent Liability a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the oceurrence or
non-ocewrrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent lability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-ogcurrence of one or more uncertain fuiure events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are
recognized/disclosed as per requirement of Ind AS in Financial statement of Company.

2.21 Treasury Shares:

The Company has created an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) for providing share-based payment to iis employees. The Company
uses EBT as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee stock option schemes.
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QOwn equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in capital reserve. Share options exercised during
the reporting period are satisfied with (reasury shares,

2.22 Initial recognition exemption and exception on transition to Ind AS:

The financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020, were the first {inancial statements, the Company had prepared in
accordance with Ind AS.

Al applicable Ind AS have been applicd consistently and retrospectively subject to Ind AS 101 exemptions and exceptions availed
by the Company. In preparing these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1 2018,
the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions:

In preparing the financial statements, the Company had applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions as on the date of Ind AS adoption.

Optional exemptions:

¢ Property plant and equipment, intangible assefs:
As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:

a) measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition at its fair value and use that fair value as its
deemed cost at that date; or

b) use a revaluation, as per Accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred as “Previous GAAP”) of an item of the property,
plant and equipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was,
at the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to fair value; or cost or depreciated cost under Ind AS adjusted 1o reflect, for
example, changes in a general or specific price index

The elections winder (a) and (b) above are also available for intangible assets that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38,
Intangible Assets, (including reliable measurement of original cost); and criteria in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the
existence of an active market); or

<) use carrying values of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties as on the date of
transition to Ind AS (which are measured in accordance with previous GAAP and after making adjustments relating to
decommissioning liabilities prescribed under Ind AS 101) if there has been no change in its functional currency on the date of
transition.

The Company had elected to apply the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to use the carrying value (measured as per the
previous GAAP) for all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties as recognized in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, as deemed cost as at the date of transition (i.e. 1 April 2018).

e Share based payments:

As per Ind AS 101, at the date of transition, an entity may elect not to fair value equity options vested before transition date as
required under Ind AS 102 Share based payment. However, if an entity elects to apply Ind AS 102 to such equity instruments, it

may do so only if the entity has disclosed publicly the fan value of those equity instrumnents, determined at the measurement date,
as defined in Ind AS 102.
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The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 102 10 all equity options on the transition date for which entity has disclosed publicly
the fair value of those equity instruments, determined at the measurement date, as defined in Ind AS 102.

o |.eases:

Appendix C to Ind AS 17 (superseded by IND AS 116) requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a
lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement, ind AS
101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition to Ind AS,
except where the effect is expected to be not material.

The Company had elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/arrangements,

Mandatory exceptions:

o Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

As per Ind AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, an entity may apply the derecognition requirements
retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities
derecognized as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 prospectively from 01 April 2018.

¢ Estimates

As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS and at the end of the
comparative pesiod presented in the entity’s first Ind AS financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates
were in error, However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies,

As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity 1o make certain estimates that were not required under previous
GAADP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS
balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Company’s estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the
financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

Fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss and/ or fair value through other comprehensive
income

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss assessment.
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost

e Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the

date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost hased on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticabje.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets bases on facts and circumstances that exist on the
date of transition. '

-
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2.23 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the
reposted amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the accompanying disclosures, , as well as the disclosure of
contingent Habilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring
a matesial adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPP1 and the business mocdel test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets
is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how
the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their maturity 1o understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is
not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Fair value of financial instrument

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheel cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
and estimates include considerations of liquidity and mode} inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Impairment of financial asset

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairment allowance
for loans and advances. ln estimating (hese cash flows, the Company makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation. These estimates
are based on assumnptions about a number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the impairment allowance.

Provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee benefit plans and cash loss contingencies. Some of
the provisions involve significant judgment about the likely outcome of various events and estimated future cash flows. The
measurement of these provisions invelves the exercise of management judgments about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions.
Payments that are expected to be incurred after more than one year are discounted at a rate which reflects both current inferest rates
and the risks specific to that provision,

Share Based Payment
Hstimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining of the most appropriate valuation model, which is

dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant, This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021
(Rs in millions ynless otherwise stated)

Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Other Estimates

¢ Usecful lives of depreciable/amortizable assels — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assel al each reporting date, based on expected utility of assels. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets

« Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on assessment
of the probability of the {uture taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

2.24 New and amended standards

a) Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for
any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 refated rent concession the same way it would account for the change
under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. This amendment had no impact
on the financial statements of the Company.

b) Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute to the ability to create
output, Furthermore, i clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.

These amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after the 1 Aprii 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period. This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the
Company enter into any business combinations.

c) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of materia! that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or abscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments clarify
that materjality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, inn the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of, nor is there
expected to be any future impact to the Company. :

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on ar after the 1 Aprii 2020. The amendments to the
definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

d) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109; Isderest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measwrement provide a number of reliefs, which apply
to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the
reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging
instrument. These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it does not have any interest rale
hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships to which
the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or
after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not expected o have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Tusion Micre Finance Private Limited
Nefes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Bs inmillions unless olhenvise stated)

Asat Asal

March 31, 2021 March 3, 2020
Cash ngl eash eguivalents
Cash on hand 111.27 1380
Balances with banks
- O curvent accounts 7.690.27
- depo with otiginal matority of less than 3 months 4.352.60 105023
Total 12,154.20 5,390,07

Short-term deposits are iwade for virying periods af between ene day and thiee months, depending en the immediate eash tequirements of the Company and carn interest at the respective shotl-tenn deposit rates. The
<ompany las not taken baik overdrall, therefore the cash and cash equivalent for cash flow slatement is same as cash and for cash equivalent given above,

Bank balance other thai eash and cash equivalents

Dreposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 monhs® 601.01 2039.71
Dreposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months ## 596.75 S48.91
Macgin money with financial institution towards securitised bomowings # - 178.08
Dreposit with financial hstitutions as security deposit - 1418
‘Fotal 1,158.36 2,780,842

* Includes Ten free fixed deposits as at March 3 .2021 Rs. 336,018 millions (Marcl: 31, 2020: Rs.1,513.75 millions)
#% Includes Hen free fixed deposits of' Rs, 30.27 millions (March 31, 2020: R5.96.25 millions)
#Bualances with banks (o the exient heid as margin money or security against the borvowings, puarmitees, other commilments,

Noter Fixed deposit and other alances witl banks earns interest at conlractual fised rates.

‘Trade recedvables (g mnortised cosl}

Unseeured considered good 27.93 KYr]
Less ¢ Provigion for impaiment b -
Fotal 2793 ALz

Noter No trade or olher receivable are due from divectors and other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any ather parson. Nor any Irade or other receivable are due fiom fims ov privale companics
Tespectively i which any director is a parner, a director or a member. Teade recgivable ave non-interest bearing and generally on Lerms of 30 (o 90 days.

loans (at nortised cost)

Ferm Loany;

Saint liability foans 40,129.77 34,400.19
WMEME Eoans 330.55 1170
Total - Gross 40,460.32 34,412.09
Less: Jmpattment loss allowance (2,853.02) {982.30)
Total - Net 43,607,390 33,429.73
{a} Sccured A5.07 -
(b} Unsecured 46,425.25 34,412.00
Folal - Gross 46,460,320 34,412.09
f.ess: Impairment loss atlowance {2,853.02) {982.36)
Total - Net 43,607.30 33,429.73
(8} Pullic seclor - -
{b) Others 46,460.32 34.412.99
Total - Gross 46,460,372 34.412.09
Less: Impaitnient loss allowance {2,853.02) {982,360}
Totnt« Net 43,607.30 33,429.73
() Loans provided i India A6.460.32 34,412.09
(a) Loans provided ouiside India - -
‘Total - Gross 46,460.32 34,412.00
Less: Imypainnent foss allowance {2.853.02) {982.36
Tota}- Net 43.607.30 33,429.73

Overview of the Loan Portfolie of 1he Company

The Company is privarily in the bushsess of providing micro loans towards income gencrating activities with its operaltons spread oul in different parts of India. The table helow discloses credit quality of the Company's
exposures as al reporting date.

Portfoso classtfication 85 at March 31, 2021

* Incheding MSME portfolia,
Gross portfolio nsovement for 1he year eaded March 31, 2021

P"articalars Stage 1 Stage H Stage HE Total
Gross carrying value of loans as al March 31, 2020 33.861.54 166.06 384.49 34,412.09
New loans ovigiated during the year, nel off for repayments and derccognised portfolio 12,104,12 77.24 192.93 12,374.29
Assels written il during the year - - (326.06) 1320.00}
Movemeit between stages

Transfer from stage [ (5,202.84) 3,000.49 2,202,385 -
Transfer fiom stage 1 1.0] {1ea6.21) 105.20 -
“Transfer from stage 11 0.01 - (0.01) -
Gross carrying value of assels as st Mareh 31, 2021 40,763.84 3,137.58 2,558.90 46,460,531

ST Rl
o~




Iruston dicro Flnance 'rivate Limited
Netes 1o Financial Statement Tor the year ended March 21, 2621

(Rs inniillions unless othenwise stated)

Gross porifolio moevement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Stage b Stape 1) Stage 11 Total
Gross catrying value of loans as al Apdl [, 2019 25.031.50 105,37 <4248 20,1411

New loans originated during the year, net of( for repayments and derecognised portfofio 851807 17,84 37.12 §.023.03
Assels written off during the year - - (352.05) {352,058}
Maovement belween stages

Transher fFom stage 1 (ARR3TY 5914 22923 -

sler fom stage i1 0.31 (16.33) 16.02 : -
Transfer fom siage 111 0.03 0.04 {0.07) -
Ciross carrylng value ol assels as a1 Maveh 3, 2020 33.861.54 166,06 184.49 14,412.09

Reconcitintion of loss atlowance provision frem beginning to end of reporting peried:

Particutars Loans - Other financial assets
Stage 1 Stage Il Stage 11 Tolal refor note 8
ECL allowance on April B, 2089 111.60 49,44 259.71 420.75
Neow assels etiginated during the year, netied off for repayments and devecognised portfolio 360,98 8.19 5476 99.93 _—
Assels wrillen ofl during the yea- - - {35205 (352.05) -
Movenent between stages N
Trangfer from slage (1.25) .26 1.00 -
Transfer from stage {1 0.4 (.50} 7.36 - -
Transler from stage 111 0.02 0.03 (0.04) - -
Lmpacl an ECL on account of movement between stages! updates io BCL 49782 32.00 23330 §1372
madet )
ECL, alfowance on March 31, 2026 64531 83.02 154.04 9242.36 13,33
New assels originated during the year, netted off for vepaymients and 230.67 A8.02 12748 396.77 {109
derecognised portiolio -
Assets wrillen off during (he year N - (326.06) (326.06) (15.00}
Movement botween stages
Tvansfer fFrom stage 3 {37.45) 16.52 20.93 -
Transfer from stage 1 .50 (33,10} 52.59 -
Transler from stage 31 .01 - {0.01) -
Impact on ECL on account of movement between stages/ updates to 13CL {3189.48) 78317 1,406.26 1,799.95
model
ECL altowanee on March 31, 2021 449,56 868,23 1,535.23 2,853.02 9.36
) Asal Asal
T Investnients {at amoriised cost) Rarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Investments in Mutual fnds (MOFC Charity fund for cancer cuve: Mavch 31, 2021 - Nil units) (March 31, 2020 -500,000 units) - 5.00
(i} Overseas investments - .
(it} Invesiments inn India - 5.00
Totzl - 8.00
§  Other financial assefs (&l amortlsed cost) Asat Asal
Marel 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
A Becurity deposits
Unsecured, considered goods 23,53 15.36
{A) 23.5% 15.36
B Other assels
fixcess interest spread (E18) recelvable 128.15 126.80
Advances recoverable in cash o for valiie 1o e reegived 158,44 109.63
Less : lpairment loss allowance (refer note ¢ for movement) {9.36) {13.33)
(B) 27023 223,10
Total (A+B) 300,76 238.46
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Asat Asrl
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2620
4 Curvent lax asseds (net)
Advance income tax {net) 119.58 119.04
Total 119.58 119,09
10 Deferred 1ax assels (net)
A Deferred sax assely:
Tpaizment allowance for firancial assets 68812 23762
Diftereaces of written down valie of property, plat and equipment 1147 786
Proviston for employee lkenefils 3573 7832
Provisions allowable on payment basis 3Lag 20,53
Fivancial labilities measured af amontised cost 6.08 199
IR impact on loan portfolio 68.9% 1872
Other temporary diffrence 10,00 .41
Total deferred tax assets 858.20 34645
1B Deferred ¢ax fiabllities
Tixcess interest spread (IE18) receivable (29.15) (30.19)
Stage 3 inlerest incotne {63.83) (11.24)
Totai deferced tax Hahilities (92.98) (41.43)
MNet deferved tax assels (A1) 765.28 05.02
< Movement In Deferred €ax gsseis (nel)
Particudars Asal (Charge)feredld in Recopaized in Qther compreliensive Recognized in As
: Blarch 31, 2020 Statemnent of profit asd Yoss income other equily Mareh 31, 2021
Assots
Tpairmient allowance for financial assels 237.62 450,51 - - G83.12
Dilferences of wrilten down value of Property, plant and equipment 786 4.01 - - 1LR7
Provision lor employee benefits 8.3 742 (0.01} - 573
Provisions allowable on payment bagis 2053 10.95 - - 3i48
Financial liabifities meastired a1 amertised cost 399 200 - - 608
EIR impact on term loans 3872 30.26 - - ¢8.98
Other femporary difference 941 6.59 - - 16.00
Liabilities
EIS receivable (30,19} 1.0% - - {29.15)
Stage 3 interest income (11,24} (52,50} {63.83)
Total 20502 460.27 (0,01} - 76528
Particulars As n¢ (Chargederedit In Recognized in Other comprehensive Recognized in Asat
A Mareh 31, 2019 Statement of profit and Loss ncome eiher eguity March 35, 2020
Assets
Impaimment atlowance for financial assels 14319 94.52 - - 237.62
Differences of wrillen down value of property, plant and equipment 847 0.61) - - 1.86
Frovision for employee benefils 22.82 6.90 (Lam - 28.32
Previsions allowable on payiment basis 14.22 6.31 - - 20,53
Financial liabititics nicasured at amontised cost 5.35 {1.36) - - 3.99
EIR impact on terny loans 29.92 8.80 - - ammn
LIS receivable 0.02 {0.02) -
Other tempeorary difforenes 16.62 {1.21) - - 541
Lighilities
EIS receivable - {30.19) - - (30.19)
Btage 3 interest income (26.21) 14.97 (11.243
Total : 214.31 92.11 {E.40}) - - 305.02

This spece is brieationally lefi blank
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Notes to Financial Statement for the yvear ended Mareh 3, 2621
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15

16

Cther non-finaneial assels
Unsecured, considered good

(Rs in milliens unless otherwise statesd)

As at
Mareh 31, 2621

As at
Mareh 31, 2020

Pre-paid expenses 16.88 13.92
Unamortised processing fees - 0.51
Net defined benefit asset (refer note 373 - 10,02
Others 6.21 8.80
Fotal 23.09 33.31
Trade payables
(i} Total outstanding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises * - -
(if) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 113.06 40.71
Fotal 113,06 40.71
* The Company does not have any outstanding ducs and any interest payable for micro, small and medium enterprises- refer Note 38
Debt Securitics (at amortised cost)
Non-convertible debentures (Secured by book debts) 8,605.90 2,851.29
Non-convertibie debentures (Unsecured ) 1,208.60 1,147.69
Total 9,904.50 3,998.98
Delt securities in India 9,904.50 3,998.98
Pebt securities outside India - -
9,904.50 3,998.98

Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks are included in Note no. 45 and 47 respectively.
Terms of Debt securities
Pacticul Number of debentures

articulars March 31,2021 March 31,2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secured
11.15% secured rated listed redeemable transferable non convertible
debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 cach redeemable at par al
the end of .'."1 months and 27 Calendar Days {Subject 1o exercise of 200.00 _ 699.67 -
put/cal]l option at the end of 35 months and 26 Caleadar Days) from
the date of allotment i.e. 10/03/2021
11.53% secured rated unlisted redeemable non convertible debentures
of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 72
months (sulJ-jccl to exercise of pul option at the end of 12 months and 750.00 . 749,54 _
Put/call Option at the end of 36 months) from the date of allofmend i,¢,
02/11/2020
11.6000% secured rated listed redeemable non convertible debentures
of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,00¢ each redecmabie at par at the end of 72
menths (sebject fo exercigse of put/calt Option at the end ol 36 months) 500.00 - 499.68 )
{rom the date of allotment i.e. 18/03/2021
10.70% Secured rated unlisted redeemable non conventible debentures
of face value of Rs, 10,00,000 cach redecimable at par at the end of 72
months  {Subject fo exercise of put /call oplion at the end of 36 315.00 315 31500 3470
months) fiom the date of allotment {.e. 03/16/2018
10.70% Secured rated unlisted redeemable non converlibie debentures
of face vahue of Rs, 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 72
months  (Subject 1o exercise of put /feall option at ihe end of 36 315 315 315.00 31470

months) from the date of aliotment i.e. 03/16/2018




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Finapcisl Statement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(Rs in millions uniess olherwise slated)

Particul Number of debentures Amonnt
articutars
March 31, 2021 March 3E, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

11.2500% secured rated fisted taxabie redeemable non convertible
debentures of Face Vale of Rs, 10,00,000 cach redeemable al par al 500

499,60 -
the end of 36 months from the dafe of atlotment i.e. 23/12/2020

11.50% secured rafed, listed, sentor taxable, transferable redeemable

non-converlible debentires of Face Vake of Rs. 10,00,000 each

redeemable al par at the eod of 36 months from e date of allotment 200 197.39
i.e. 29/07/2020

11.25% secured rated listed redeemable non convertible debentures of
Face Vale of Rs. 10,006,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 20

200 198.99
monghs from the date of allouiment i.c. 30/06/2020

11.90%  secured, rated, listed, unsuberdinated, transferable,

redeemalle, non convertible debentures of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,000

each redeemable al par af the end of 36 months from the date of 10¢ 99.49
allotment i.e. 10/06/2020

11.25% secured rated, listed, redeemable non-convertible debentures
of Faee Vale of Rs. 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at tie end of 32 250 240 .09
months from the dale of allotment i.e. 31/07/2020

10.50% secured rated listed senior taxable redeemable non convertible
debentures of Face Vale of Rs, 10,00,000 cach redeemable at par at
the end of 18 months from the date of allotment i.e. 13/11/2020 250 - 24918 -

12.05% Sceured rated listed redeemable non convertible debentures of

face value of Rs. 10,00,000 cach redeemable at par at the end of 72

months {Subject to exercise of put/calt option af the end of 36 months} 526 526 52490 523.80
from the date of aliotment i.e. 06/02/2016

10.40% secured rated listed senior taxable redeemable non convertible
debentures of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at
the end of' 18 months {rom the date of allotment i.¢, 13/11/2020 500 - 498.02 -

1(1.25% secnred rated listed senior taxable redecmable nen converlible
debentures of Face Vale of Rs. 10,006,000 cach redeemable at par at
the end of 18 months from the date of allotment i.e. 13/11/2020 350 - 348.19 -

9.75% secured raled Jisted senier taxable redeemable non convertible
debentures of Face Vale of Rs, 10,00,000 each redeemable al par at
the end of 18 months from the date of allotment i.e. 13/11/2020 250 - 248.82 .

10.50% secured rated listed senior taxable redeemabie non convertibie
debentures of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,000 cach redeemable at par at
the end of |8 menths from the date of aliotment i.e. 13/11/2020 500 - 498.83 N

10.50% secured rated, listed, senior taxable, transferable redeemable

non-converlible debentures of Face Vale of Rs. 10,00,000 each

redeemable at par at the end of 18 months frem the date of atllotiment 250 - 24879 -
i.c, 12/08/2020

10.50% sceured rated, listed, senior taxable, transferable redeemable

von-cenverlible debentures of Face Vale of Rs, 10,060,000 ecach

redeemable at par at the end of 18 months from the date of aliotment 250 : 249.52 -
i.e. 12/08/2020

11.53% Secured rated uniisted redeemable non convertible debentures
of face value of Rs, 1,00,060,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 15 35

348.94 347.25
36 menths from the date of alloiment i.e. 10/22/2018
9.54% rated unlisted senior secured redeemable taxable, fransferable
nen converlible debentwres of Face Vale of Rs, 10,00,000 each
redeemable at par at the end of 48 months from the date ol allpiment 600 - 598.24 -
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Stafement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(R in millions unless otherwise stated)

Particniars Number of debentores Amount

’ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
11.81% Secured rated unlisted redeemable non convertible debentures
of face value of Rs. 1,00,00,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 25 25 249,86 249,60

36 months from the date of allotment e, 09/27/2018

11.86% Secured rated listed redeemable non converlible debentures of

face value of Rs, 10,00,000 each redecmable al par at the end of 60

months {Subjeet to exercise of putfeall option at the end of 36 months) 470 470 469.81 469.40
from the date of allotment i.e. 08/31/2016

11.40% Resel rate (RB repo rate +credit spread) secured rated lisled

taxable transferable redeemable nen convertible debentures of Face

Vale of Rs, 10,00,000 cach redeemable atl par at the end of 36 months 250 " 249.55 h
from the date of allotment i.e. 19/06/2020

15% Sceured rated Jisted redecimable non cenvertible debentures of
face value of INR 10,00,000 each redecmable at par at the end of 69
months (Subject to exercise of put option date at the end of 24 months
and 48 menths) from the date of allotment i.e. 03/31/2015 redeemable
on maturity i option not exercised

- 100 - 99.91

13.15% GWT secured rated fisted redeemable non convertible
debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at - 330 - 309,90
the end of 36 months from the dale of sllotment i.e, ¢7/07/2017

12.10% Seccured listed redeemable non convertible debentures of face
value of Rs. 10,000,000 each redeemable at par af the end of 36 montis - 200 - 3332
from the date of allotment i.e. 09/04/2017

12.30% Sccured rated unlisted redeemable non convertible debentures
of face value of Rs. 10,00,000 each redeemable at par at the end of 36

- 190 - 188,70
months fiom the date of allotment i.e. 03/15/2018

Unsecured

i1.91% Unsecewed Rated Listed Redeemable Non Convertible

Debenture of Face Vale of INR 10,00,000 each redeemable at par af

the end of 72 Months (subject to exercies of Put/Call Option at the end 550 550 548,42 549.10
of 36 months) from the Date of Allotnent i.e. 09/15/2016

11.91%% Unsecured rated listed redeemable non convertible debenture

of face value of INR 10,00,000 each redeemable at par al the end of

71 (subject to exercise of put/call Option at the end of 36 months) 350 350 349.30 348.91
from the date of allotment i.¢, 09/10/2019

NIFTY 50 Index linked rated listed redeemable nen convertible of face
value of INR 10,00,000 ¢ach redeemable al par at the end of 42 250 250 249.90

249.69
months from the dale of allotment i.c. 03/66/2018

11.96% unsecured  rated listed unsubordinated  (ransferable

redeemable non convertible debentires of INR  10,00,000 cach

redeemable at par al the end of 12 months from the date of allotment 150 - 149.98 "
i.e. 05/08/2020

Total 9,904,50 3,998.98
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Fusion Micro Finance Privaie Limifed
MNofes to Financial Stalement for the vear ended March 31, 202§

(Rs in mithons unless otherwise stated)

As at As af
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
17 Borrowings (Other than delit securities)
Al amortised cost
() Team oans
(i) from banks 26,856.9¢ 19,127.76
(i1) from other pariies 2,019.30 2,644,79
(b) Short ferm loans from banks 3,499.04 2,398.77
(¢) Short tenm Joans from financial institutions 274.95 -
(d) Borrowings under securitisation arrangement - 400.26
Total 33,250.79 24,571.58
Borrowings in India 33,250.79 24,571,58
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 33,250.79 24.571.58
Seecured* 33,250.79 24,571.58
Unsecured - -
Total 33,250.79 24,571.58
*The secured borrowings are secured by hypothecation of book debts and margin money deposits.
18 Subordinated liabilitics
At amortised cost
{rom banks 300,00 300.00
from other than banks 867.21 866.29
Total 1,167.21 1,166.29
Subordinated linbtdities in Inclia 1,167.21 1,166.29
Subordinated linbilities outside India - -
Total 1,167.21 1,166.29

Note :Company has not defaulted in repayment of horrowing / interest during the current year and previous year with respect to Debt Securities (Note 16)
borrowings (other than debt securities) (Note 17) and subordinated Habilities (Note 18)

This space is intentionally left blank
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Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs in miflions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
19 Other financial liabilities
Payable towards assigned/securitized portfolio 177.46 179.91
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 373.39 224.69
Salaries and bonus payable 159.68 99.70
Lease liability (refer note 52) 84.63 -
Other payable 470.82 8,98
Total 1,265.98 513.28
20 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for tax {net) 53.98 0.53
Total 53.98 0.53
21 Provisions
Provision for gratuity (refer note 37) 5.17 -
Provision for compensated absence (refer note 37) 37.34 25.16
Provision on business correspondence portfolio - 6.01
Provision for other contingencies® 37.48 25.89
Others 0.77 0.66
Total 80.76 57.72
*Provisions are for cash loss and related contingencies,
22 Other non-financial liabilitics
Statutory dues payable 7718 5972
~ Others 232 2.24
Total 79.50 61.96
23 Share Capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares
90,000,000 (March 31, 2020 : 90,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 960.00 900.00
Preference shares
5,000,000 (March 31, 2020 : 5,000,000) preference shares of Rs. [0 cach 50.00 50.00
950.00 950.00
23.1 Equity Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares
Fully paid up
80,383,716 (March 31, 2020 : 8,03,83,716) cquity shares of Rs. 10 each 803.84 803.84
fully paid up
Less: treasury shares (17.41) (18.28)
Partly paid up
39,42,672 (March 31, 2020 : 39,42,672) equily shares of Rs. 10 each 3.94 3.94
partly paid up @ Rs. |
790.37 789.50
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Yusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Nofes fo Financial Statement for the year ended Marceh 31, 2021
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(Rs i millions uniess otlerwise stated)

The reconciliation of the namber of equity shares ouwtstanding as at the beginning and the end of the reporting period is sel out betow:

As al March 31, 2021 Ag at March 31, 2020

Particulars

Number of shares Anmount Number of shares Anount
LEquity shares
At the commencement of the year 8,43,26,388 807.78 6,57,20.588 629.31
Allotted 1o Fusion employee benefit trust - - 549,647 5.50
Issued duging the year (fully paid up} - - 1,72,12,889 172.13
[ssued during the year (partly paid up@ Rs. 1) - - 8,43,2064 0.84
At the end of the year §,43,26,388 807.78 8,43,26,388 807,78

Riphts, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares @

(i) Lquity shares

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per equity share. Aceordingly, all equity shaves rank equally with regard to dividends and shave in
the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled 10 receive dividend as declared from time to time subject 1o payment of dividend to preference shareholders. In
the event ol liguidation of the Company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of {he Company, remaining afier distribution of ail
prefercntial amounts in proportion (o the number of equily shares held,

Farticulars of equity sharcholder hokding more than 5% equity shares:

Nante of the shareholder March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4 e shareho
Number of shares % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
Devesh Sachdev - MD & CEQ 55,53414 6.59% 55,53,414 6.59%,
Oikoeredit, Ecumenical Development Co- 66,06,375 7.83% 66,006,375 7.83%
operative Society ULA., Netherlands
Creatien Investment Fusien,1.1.C, Chicago, 1,53,21,043 18.17% 1,53,21,043 18.17%
U.S.A.
Creation Investment Fusion 11 LLC, Chicago, 99,54,529 11.80% 99,54,529 11.80%
U.S.A.
Honey Rose Investiment Lid, Mauwriting 4,10,22,730 48.65% 4,10,22,730 48.65%
7,84,58,091 93.04% 7,84,58,091 93.04%

Particulars of shares reserved for issue under employee stock options

Number of shares
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Particulars

Under Employee Stoek Option Plans 1,352,454% 1,352,454%

* With reference (o the amendment agreement dated December 17, 2019 to the Sharcholder's agrecment dated September 10, 2018, the Company witl institute an emyployee
stock option plan, pursvant to whicly it will grant and allot 1,352,454 equity shares of the Company 1o certain identified employees.

No share was allotted without paymexnt being received in cash during the five-year period ended March 3§, 2021

This space is intentionally left biank,
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Fusion Micre Finance Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

{Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 Mlarch 31, 2020
24 Other cquity

Statutory reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 32244 183.22
Add: Amount transferred from retained earnings 87.89 139.22
Balance as at the end of the year 418,33 322.44
Securities premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year 9,946.20 5,116.98
Add: On issue of shares - 4,907.04
Add: Transfer from stock option outstanding 3.41 1.97
Add: Adjustment relating to BSOP Welare trust 392 {76.73)
Less : Amount ulilised towards share issue expenses - (3.06)
Balance as at the end of he year 9,953.53 9,946.20
Retained carnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 880.38 32128
Add: Profit for the year 439.44 696,10
Add: Stock options lapsed 2.36 2.29
Less + Amouni ransferred 1o statutory reserve (87.89) (139.22)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,234.,29 880.38
LEmployee stock option plan reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the vear 43.83 19.88
Add: Compensation {or options granted 30.40 2821
Ixercise & lapse of stock options (3.77) (4.26)
Balance as at the end of the year 68.40 43.83
Remeasurement of defined Lenefit plans
Balance as al the beginning of the year 6.54 1.48
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.03 5.06
Balance as at the end of the year 6.57 6.54

Nature and purpose of other reserve

Statutory reserve

The said reserve has been created under section 45-1C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, As per (he said section, every Non-banking financial company shall
create a reserve fund and transter a sum of not less than 20% of net profit every year before declaration of dividend.

Securities premium

Sccurities premium is used to record the premiuwm received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance wilh (he provisions of the Companies Act, 2033,

Retained Earnings

The said amount represents accumulated surplusi(deficit) of the profits cared by the Company

Lmployee stock option plan reserve

The said amount {s used to recognise the prant date fair value of options issued 1o employees by the Company.

Remeasurement of defined benefil pians

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per ind AS 19, Bmployee Benefits:

(a) actuarial gains and losses

(b) the return on plan assets, exchiding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

(<) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benetit lability (asse()
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{rusion Micre Finance Privale Limifed

Naotes to Financial Statement for the year ended Mavel 31, 20275

26

2

28

29

30

31

Interest lacome

On financial asset nieasured at amortized eost
Interest income on lean portiolio

Interest on deposils with banks

Tolal

Fees and commission income

Facilitation fees
Income from business correspondence services
Total

Net gain on fair value changes

- On trading portfolio

Net gain on sale of mutual fund investment
- Others
Total

Yair value changes :
- Realised

- Unrealised

Total

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cosl category

Gain on derecognition of financial instruments (refer note 44 )

Other income
Market support income
Recovery of loan written ofl

Miscellaneous income

Total

Finance cost

On financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest on debt securities

Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)
Ingerest on subordinated liabilities

Interest on ease lability

Other finance costs

Total

Impairment on financial ins{ruments

On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Impairment on loan portfolio
Otlier financial assets
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(Rs in millions unkess otherwise stated)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

8,059.97

6,499.72

215,67 165.1¢
§,275.64 6,664.88
5.08 7.18
2.11 27.46
7.19 34,64
167.45 231.57
167.45 231.57
167.45 231.57
167.458 231.57
107.84 271.55
107.84 271.55
145.39 74.10
18.04 24.76
9.33 1.61
172.76 100.47
762.80 615,74
2817.54 2,594.82
165.40 165.59
530 -
- 0.57
3,751.04 3,376.72
2,196.71 913.60
11.09 i3.33
2,207.80 926.99




Fuasion Micre Finance Private Limifed
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ¢ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
32 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,447.18 1,304.55
Contribution 1o provident and other funds® 122,37 109.21
Share based compensalion expense . 30.40 28.21
Staff welfure expenses 36,45 41.36
Total 1,686.40 1,483.33

*Conltribution (o provident [und is net of Rs. 7.25 million (March 31, 2020 ; Rs. 8.45 million) received under the scheme “Pradhan Mantri Rajgar Protsahan

33 Other expenses

Renf (refer note 52) 110.79 97.89
Travelling and conveyance 74.80 81.62
Eegal and professional fees™ 20,94 45,63
Rates and taxes 40.65 3113
(fice maintenance 128.0% 123.85
Walter and electricity 19.63 17.02
Staff recruitment and raining 2.4% 6,90
Insurance 12.26 8.97
Corporate social responsibility # 12,73 10,00
Business prometion 0.62 5.14
Lodging and boarding 10.18 21.56
Misceilancous expenses 45.6] 39.96
Total 478.7% 490.36

Inciudes payment to zuditors *

Audit fees 2.0 2,40
Certification and other services 0.3¢ 0.55
Oul of pocket expenses 0.05 0.05

3.05 3.00

# Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

) Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Company for respective financial year 8.22 2.63
L} Amount approved by the board o be spent during the year 12.73 12.00
c ) Amount spent during the year :

i) on purposes other than constreelion/acquisition of any asset 12.73 10.0%

ii} on purposes other {han (i) above - "

34  Income tax

a. Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consist of:

Current income tax:

Income 1ax 588.7% : 395.99
Deferred tax:

Attributable o~

Origination and reversai of temporary differences ‘ (460.24) {148.'{)6}
Increasef/reduction in tax rate - 55,92
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 128.47 303.85

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax arising on remeasurement gains on defined benefit plan 0.01

Total income tax expense 128.48 305.25




Trusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Notfes (e Finacial Stdement for ehe year ended Mareh 31, 20621

=

35

36

{Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)
Income tax recognised In other compreliensive inconie

Tror the year ended Mareh 31, 2021 For the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

Particulars — -
Before tax ‘Fax expense Net of fax Before tax I'ax expense Net of fax

Remeasurement of the net delined bevetit Fability/asset 0.04 (0.0 0.03 6,40 (3.40) 5.00

Total 0.04 {0.01) {03 6.40 {1.40} 5.6

Note: The company had clected to excreise the option permitted under section 11 3BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ns introduced by Taxation Luws (Amendiment) Ordinance 2019,

Reconciliation of total tax charge
The tax charge shown in The slatement of profit and Toss differs frem the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been chmged at india corporate tax rate. A veconciliation between the lax expense
and the accounting profit nwltiplied by India’s demestic tax rate for the yeavs ended 31 March 2021 and March 31, 2020 35, as [ollows:

For the year ented March 31,2021 For the vear ended March 31, 2020

Particulars

Enacted {ax rate Amaount Enacted fax rate Anmount
Accounting profil belore tax 25.17% 567.91 25.17% 999,05
Computed tax expense 14293 251.67
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 1.9% 10.86 1.97% 9.66
Bifference on account of change in tax rate {effect of deferred tax due to
chanpe in enacted tax rate) 1.00% - 5.59% 55,02
Dreduetion under chapter VI-A (0.04} (25.06) 132% (13,29
Others -0,05% (0.26) -0.02% 0,17}
Effective tax rate/income tax expense reported in statensent of profit and loss 22.62% 12847 30.39% 035

Tar the year einded  For the year ended

Earning per share

Maarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Basie earning per share
Adjusted prefit for the year 439 .44 696.10
Adjusted profit afler fax for calculation of basic EPS and diluted BPS 43944 606,10
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year 7897 66,48
b) Diluted earning per share
Adjusted profit for the year 43944 696,10
Weighted average number of equily shares cwistanding duting the year - basic 78.97 60.48
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity sliares on aceount of employee slock L& 0.94
Weighted average munber of equity shares oulstandimg during the year - diiuted 79,98 67.42
Larning per share
Basic - par value of Rs. 10 cach 5.56 10.47
Diluted - par value of Rs.10 cach 5.49 10.32

Segnend reporting

The chiel executive officer of the Cemnpany takes decision fn respect of allocation of resources i assesses the performance basis the veportf informalion provided by functional heads and mve thus
considered 10 be Chiel Operating Decision Maker.

The Company operales under the principal business segment viz, "niero financing activities ". The Chief Operating Trecision Maker (CODM] views and monitors the operating results of ils single
business segwent for the purpose of making decisions aboul resource allocation and performance assessiment, Accordingly, there are no separate repottable sepments in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 108 *Operating scgment” and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than thosc already provided in the financial statements. Presently, the Company’s
operalions are confined in India, There are no individual customer contributing more than 10% of Conypany’s tolal revenue. All non-current assets other than fimancial instruments, defened tax asscis,
post-employment benefit assets of the Company are located in india.
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37 Empleyce benefit plan

()

The Compary opezales the following post-employment plans -

i, Defined contribution plan

The Company makes conteibulion, determined as a specificd percentage of employees salaries, in respect of quaiilied employees owards provident fund and other Rinds which are defined
contribution plans. The Conpany has no obligation other than this 10 meke e specitied conibution. The contribution is charged 1o the statement of profit and loss as Uiy acciue.

Particnlars For the year ended Tor the yenr ended
March 31, 2021 Aareh 31, 2020
Confribution to provident funds* 82.11 73.09
Contribution 1o caployee state insurance 2129 23.12
WNational pension scheie 0.75 -
Labour welfare fund 0.3¢6 0.29
104.5]1 96.50

*Contribution to provident fund are net of Rs. 7.25 million received under the scheme "Pradhan Maniri Rojgar Yojana" for the year ended March 31, 202) (Previous year Rs. $.45 million).

. Defined benefit plan

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit pratuily plan. Bvery cmployee who has conypleted five years or more of serviee is eligible for geatuily on cessalion of ewptoynent and it is compuled at
15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per "The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from tise (o time, The scheme is funded with an insurance
Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets aud the present value of the defined benefil obligation for gratuily were carried oul as at March 31, 2021, The present value of the defined
benefit abligations and the related curent service cost and past service cost, were measurcd using the prajected unit credit method,

The following tables summarized the components of net benefil expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the finded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet
for the gratuity plas,

Particulary As at March 31, 2621 As at March 31, 2020
Present value of abligation 70,57 43.98
Fair value of plan assets 65.19 53.80
Nel defined benefit lability/(asser) * 5.38 (0.82)

* The amsount disclosed i nofe 21 for year ended March 21 and note 14 for year ended March 20 include Rs. 0.2 million, advanced to giatuity trust for bask account opening.

Amount recognized in the statentent of profit and loss is as under:
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Current service cost 18.45 19.34
Past service cost - -
Loss/(Gain) on settlement - -
Net interest cost/{income) on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) {0.55) 0.17
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 17.90 19.17

Amount recognized in the other compreliensive incone;

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized during the year 0.04 6.46

0.04 6.46
Funding

The scheme is fully funded with Kotak Gratuity Group Plas. The funding reguirements are based on the geatuity fund's actuarial measurement franework set out i the fumding policies of
the piats. Employees <o sot contribute to the plan.

Expectod confribution to gratily plas Tor the year ending March 31, 2022 is Rs, 30,20 million,

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined denefit (asset) Hability and its components:

As at March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020

Particulars Defined benefit Fair value of plan  Net defined benefit  Defined benefit Fair value of plan Net defined henefit

obligation RSsCES {zsset) lability obligation assels {assct)/ linbility
Balance at (he beginning of the year 43.98 53.80 (9.82} 3147 33.67 (2.20}
Included in profit or loss ' '
Current service cosl 18.45 - 18.45 19.34 - 19.34
Inerest cost (income) 2.44 298 (0.54) 244 263 0.17}
Total 2089 2.98 17.91 2178 2.61 19.17
Included in Other comprehensive inconte
Remeaswements loss (pain)
- Actuariz] tess (gaill) avksing fom: -
- demographic assemplions {293) - {2.9%) {22.50) - (22,50}
- financial nssumptions 1.73 - n 15.02 - 15.02
- experience adjusiment 1.96 - 1,96 {0.46) - (0.46}
~ Retum on plun assets excluding interest income - 6.78 {6.18) - (1.48) 1.43
Totul 6.4 6,78 0.04) (7.94) (1.48) {6.46}
Other
Contribution paid by the eployer - 1.63 (1.63) - 19.00 (19.00}
Benedits paid (1.04) (1.04) (1.33) (1.33}
Tatal (1.04) 1.63 2,67 a.3n 19,00 (20.33)
Batance af the end of the year 70,57 65.19 5.38 43.98 53.80 {9.82}
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(c)  Plan assets
Particulars As at Maveh 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Tvestinend with Kotalc grataity group plan 92% 122%
One an annual basis, an asset-Hability matching study {s done by (e Company whereby the Company contributes the net fncrease in (e actuarial Hability (o the plan manager (instner) in
order to manage the tability risk. The above % describes vatio of faiv value of plan assets with total defined benefit obligation.

) Actuarial assumplions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (oxpressed as weighted averages):
Partienlars As at March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Discount rate 5.65% 6%
Future long tenn salary growli 0% 8%
Wilhdrawal rale: 2% 20%
Retirement age (in year) 6000 64.00
Expected rate of return on plan assets 5.65% 6%
Montality 100% of IALM 2012-14  100% of IALM 2012-14

{¢) Sensitivity analysis of significant assamptions
The following table present a sensitivity analysis 1o one of the relevant acluarial assumption, holding other assumplions constant, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have
been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumiptions that were reasonably possible al the reporting date.
Particwdars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Impact on defined Bencfit olligation Impact on defined benefit ollipation
Increase Deerease Tuerease Deerease

Discount rate {1.00% movenment) 66.77 74.76 41.44 46.19
Sulary growth rate (1.00% movement) 74.55 606,88 46,73 4144
Attrition rate (1.00% movement) 69.25 71.97 43.17 44,82
Mortatity rate (10.00% movement) 70.56 70,58 43,97 43.97

()  Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
Particulars As ai March 31, 2028 As al Mavch 31, 2020
i year 8.51 4.47
Between 2-5 years 39.35 23.43
Belween 6-10 years 29.81 19.67
Over 10 yenrs 23.89 £7.13
Total 101.76 64.70
As al March 31, 2021, (he weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 5 years (March 31, 2020 - 6 years).

{g) Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, witich are dynamic in riature and vary over tine, As such Company is exposed to vartouy risks as foltows -
Salary increases @ The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the mte of inerease of
salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability,
Investment risk : The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calcuiated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to the prevailing markel yields of Indian governmen
securities as at the balanee sheet date for the estismted temn of the ebligation.
Discount rate : Reductios: in discount rate in subsequent valualions can increase the plan's liability.
Mortality & disability : Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher thau assumed in the valuation can ispact the Habilities.
Withdrawals : Actial withdrawals proving higher or iower than assumed witldrawals and change of withdiawal rates al subsequent valvations can impact plan’s liability.
Expected rate of veturn on plan assets: This is hased on the expectation of the average Jong torm vate of retum expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the
obligaticns,

iti Compensated absenges

()

The Cowpany provides compensated absences benefits 1o the emplayees of the Company which can be carried forward to future yoars. Amount recogaised it (he Statement of profil and
loss for compensated absences is as under

Particulars Tor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Marvch 31, 2020
Ameunt recognised in statement of profit and loss 20.31 1540
Amount recognized in the balance sheet: As af Mavch 31, 2021 As af Marel 31, 2020
Present value of obligation as at tle end 3734 25,16

The Code on Social Secwrity, 2020 (*Code’) relating Lo employee benefits during employment and post-employiment benefits received Presidentiat assent in Seplember 2020, The Code has
been published in the Gazelte of Judia. However, the date on which the Code will come o effeet has not been notified and the fisal rules/interprelation have not yel been issued. The
Company will assess the fpact of the Code when it comes into effect and wilf record any related impact in e perfod the Code becomes effective,
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(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

38 Amount payable to micro small and wmedimn enterprises

The Ministry of Micro Smalt and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the ‘entreprencirs memorandum number' as allotied atter filling of the memorandum,
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable 1o such eaterprises as at March 31, 2021 has been made in the financial slatements based on
information received and availabie with the Company,

3

o

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilitics

The fable below shows an analysis of assels and liabilitics analysed according o when they are expected 10 be recovered or settled, With repard 1o loans and
advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment bebaviour as used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt refiect the contractual
coupon amortisations.

As at March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020

Particulars Within 12 After 12 . Within 12 After 12 o~

Total ) Total

months motths months months
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,154.20 - 12,154.20 5,396.67 - 5,396.67
Bank balances other than eash and cash 601,61 596.75 1,198.36 2,231.9] 54891 2,780.82
Trade receivables 27.93 - 27.93 31.39 - 31.39
Loans 27,218.83 16,388.47 43,607.30 19,737.98 13,641,758 33,429.73
[nvestments - - - 5.00 - 5.00
Other financial assets 273.95 20.81 300,76 229.04 9.42 238.46
Nen-finacial assets
Current tax assets (net) B 119,58 119.58 - 119.09 119.09
Deferred (ax assels {nef) - 76528 765.28 - 305.02 305.02
Propetty, plant and equipment - 102.74 102,74 - 58.98 58.98
Intangible assets - 1.80 190 - 1.47 147
Right of use asset - 819 78.19 - - -
Other non financial assets 22.77 0.32 23.09 33.22 0.09 33.3]
Total Assets 40,299.29 18,080.04 58,379.33 27,605.21 14,734.73 42,399.94
Liabitities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 113,06 - 113.06 40.71 - 40,71
Debt securities 2,467.29 7.437.20 9,904,49 1,257.03 2,741,95 3,998.98
Borrowings (otlier than debt securities) 21,725.21 11,525.58 33.250.79 15,700.01 8,805.57 24,571.5%
Subordinated lizbilities 70.00 1,097.21 1,167.21 59.08 1,097.21 1,160.29
Other financial liabilities 1,184.75 §1.23 1,265.98 513.28 - 513.28
MNon-financial iabilitics
Current tax liabilities (net) 53.98 - 53.98 053 - 0.53
Provisions 75.39 5.37 80.76 38.59 19.13 57.72
Other non-financial liabitities 79.50 - 79.50 61.96 - 61.96
Tofal Liabilifies 25,769.18 20,146,59 45,015.77 17,747.19 12,663.86 30,411.05
MNet Assols 14.530.11 (2,066.55) 12,463.56 9,918.02 2,070.87 11.988.89
49 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activitics
The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows :
Particulars Debt securities Borrowings (other than debt Suberdinated liabilitics Total
: securitics) :
March 31, 2019 4,990.08 23,130.35 1,165.49 29,285.89
Cash flows:
Repayment (1,346.34) {17,800.02) - {19.146.30)
Troceeds other than overdraf facility 348.71 19,247.43 - 19,596.14
Non Cash:
Aumortisation of upfront fees 6,56 {6.18} (.80 1.18
Maveh 31,2020 3,998.98 24,571.58 1,166.29 29,736.85
Cash flows:
Repayment (660.53) (20,036.34) - (20,696.87)
Proceeds other than overdrafi facility 6,571.19 28,711.21 - 35,288.41
Non Cash:
Amortisation of upfront fees (11.14) 4,34 0.92 {5.88)
March 31, 2021 9,904,560 33,250.79 1,167.21 44,322.50
N /((,ﬂ ) -
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Share based compensation

Descriplion of shave-based payment arvangements

Share option programme {(equity settled)

The Company has granted stock options o certain employees of the Company under the Bmploves Stock Option Scheme 2014 {Scheme 2014) and 'Employee Stock

OQption Scheme 201 6 {Scheme 2016). The key terms and conditions related o the grant of (he stock options are as follows:

The Scheme 2014 and 2016 are effective from July 31, 2014 and January 16, 2017 respectively and are administered through a ESOP Trust {Fusion Employees Benefil
Trust).

The scheme provides that, subject to continued employment with the Company. the employees are granfed an oplion fo acquire equily shares of the Company that may be
exercised within a specified period.

The Company has formed Fugion ESOP Trust on June 24, 2014 1o issue BSOPs 1o employees of the Company as per the respective scheme, The Company has given
inferest and collateral free loan to the ESOP trust, {o provide financial assistance o purchase equily shares of the Company under such schemes, The Frust in turn allots the
shares 10 employces on exercise of (heir riglt against cash consideration.

As on March 31, 2021, the ESOP tust have 17,40,626 eguily shares, (March 31, 2020 - 18,.27,536). The 1Z50P Trust does not have any transaction ofher than those
mentioned above, hence it is (reated as an integral part of the Company and accordingly gets consolidated with the books of the Company. Accordingly, as al March 31,
202, the Company has reduced the shares atlofied 1o FESOP Trast amounting Rs, 17.41 million (March 31, 2020 - Rs, 18,28 million) from the share capital and Rs.
138,14 million (March 31, 2020 - Rs. 141.36 million) from the share premium. These are shown as treasury shares.

The eligible enployees shall exercise their oplion to acquire the shares of the Company within a period of eight years from the end of vesting period. The plan shalt be
administered, supervised and implemented by the board.

These optiens shall vest oo graded basis as follows:

Time period Percentage Vosting condition
On completion of § year 25% Service
On completion of 2 years 25% Service
On completion of 3 years 25% Service
On completion of 4 years 25% Service

Reconciliation of outstanding share options
Set out below is a sununary of options granted under the plan

March 31,2021
Number of share Average exercise

March 31, 2020

Particulars Number of share Average excreise

options price per share optiens price per share
Qutstanding options at the beginning of the year 16,20,998 100.84 11,98,643 68.90
Add: Granted duying the year 5,84,500 290.48 5,90,970 157.04
Less: Lapsed/ferfeited during the year 48,030 88.20 92,945 92.18
Less: Exercised during the year 86,910 55.50 75,670 44,36
Qutstanding options at the end of the year 20,70,558 156.57 16,20,998 100.84
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year 742,836 4,53,243

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share oplions exercised during the year ended March 31, 2021 was Rs 123.49 (March 31, 2020 - Rs, 116.99).

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following contractual expiry date and excreise options

Number of options outstanding
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Grant date Number of options Expiry date Exercise price

March 31, 2016 2,17,000
Tranche 1 54,250 Mareh 31, 2025 27.08 10,250 19,250
Tranche 2 54,250 March 31, 2026 27.08 10,250 10,250
Tranche 3 54,250 March 31, 2027 27.08 19,750 36,500
Tranche 4 54,250 March 30, 2028 27.08 29,500 43,500
March 31, 2017 3,41,900
Tranche 1 85,475 March 31, 2026 37.99 49,248 63,173
Tranche 2 85,475 March 31, 2027 37.99 62,675 76,600
Tranche 3 85,475 March 30, 2028 37.99 76,601 76,601
Tranche 4 85,475 March 30, 2029 37.99 85,475 85,475
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Nunther of options outsianding

Grant dale Number of options Expiry date Lixercise price  As at March 31, 2021 As at Marceh 31, 2020
March 31, 2018 3,30,540
Tranche 1 82,635 March 31, 2027 64.08 52318 61.926
Tranche 2 82,635 March 30, 2028 64,08 53,662 65,143
Tranche 3 §2,035 March 30, 2029 64,08 57,818 67,473
Tranche 4 82,635 March 30, 2030 04.08 59,045 67,473
Maveh 31, 2019 4,34,720
Tranche 1 1,08,680 March 31, 2028 116.00 79.829 88,049
Tranche 2 1.08,680 March 31, 2029 110,00 54,530 96,423
Tranche 3 1,08,680 March 31, 2030 HIL00 94,665 96,423
Tranche 4 1.08,680 March 31, 2031 .00 94,6065 96,423
September 30, 2019 5,46,180
Tranche | 136,545 Sepiember 30, 2028 154.04 1.28,558 1,33,483
Tranche 2 1,36,545  September 30, 2029 154.04 131,160 1,33.483
Tranche 3 1,36,545  September 30, 2030 154.04 1,31,i60 1,33,483
Tranche 4 136,545  Seplember 30, 2031 154.04 1,31,160 : 1,33,483
November 8, 2019 31,790
Tranche 1 7.948 November 8, 2028 154.04 6,898 7,948
Tranche 2 7.948 November 8, 2029 154,04 7.948 7.948
Tranche 3 7948 November 8, 2030 154.04 7948 7,948
Tranche 4 7948 November 8, 2031 154,04 7.948 7,948
February 18, 2020 13,000
Tranche | 3,250 TFebruary 18, 2029 290,48 3,250 3,250
Tranche 2 3,250 TFebruary 18, 203¢ 250,48 3,250 3,250
Tranche 3 3,250  February 18, 2031 290,48 3,250 3,250
Tranche 4 3,250 Pebruary 19, 2032 290.48 3,250 3,250
August 19, 2020 162600
Tranche 1 40,500 August 19, 2029 290.48 40,500 -
Tranche 2 40,500 August 19, 2030 290.48 40,500 -
Tranche 3 40,500 August 19, 2031 290.48 40,500 -
Tranche 4 40,500 August 19, 2032 290.48 40,500 -
November 9, 2020 67,500
Tranche 1 16,875 November 9, 2029 290.48 16,875 -
Tranche 2 16,875 November 9, 2030 29048 16,875 -
Tranche 3 16,875 November 9, 2031 290.48 16,875 -
Trancle 4 16,875  Nevember 9, 2032 250,48 16,875 -
February 5, 2021 3,55,000
Tranche 88,750 February 5, 2030 29048 88,750 -
Tranche 2 88750  February 5, 2031 29048 88,750 -
Tranche 3 88750 Febraary 5, 2032 29048 88,750 -
Tranche 4 88750  Febryary 5, 2033 29048 88,750 -
Ouistanding options at the end of the year 20,70,558 £3,20,998
Weighled average remaining conlractual life of options outstanding at the end of the pericd 7.63 years 9.05 years

B.  Measurement of fair values
i Equify-settied share-based payment arvangements

‘Fhe fair value of employee share oplions has been measured using Black-Scholes model, The weighted average fair value of each option granted during the financial year
2020-21 was ranged between Rs, 83.61 - Rs. 95.12.

The fair value of options and 1he inpuis wsed in the measurement of the grant date fair values of The equity-settled share based payment plans ave as fotlows:

Grant date Expiry date Historical volatility Exercise price  ~ Share price Risk free rate Irair value of option
March 31, 2016
Tranche 1 March 31, 2025 45.00% 27.08 51.90 7.18% 30.69
Tranche 2 March 31, 2026 45.00% 27,08 51.90 7.32% 32.84
Tranche 3 March 31, 2027 45.00% 27.08 51.90 7.43% 14,74
Tranche 4 March 30, 2028 45.00% 27.08 51.90 7.51% 306.42
March 31, 2017
Tranche | March 31, 2026 45.00% 37.99 80.40 6.45% 51.16
Tranche 2 March 31, 2027 45,00% 37.99 80.40 6.62% 3342
Tranche 3 March 30, 2028 45.00% 37.99 80.40 £77% 56.41
Tranche 4 March 20, 2029 45.00% 3799 80.40 6.88% 58.65
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Gral date

Expiry date

Historical volatility

Exercise price

Share price

Risk free rate

I7air value of option

March 31, 2018
Tranche
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

Mareh 31, 2019
Tranche |
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

September 30, 2019
Tranche |
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

November 8, 2019
Tranche |
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

February 18, 2020
Tranche
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

Augusi 19, 2020
Tranche |
Traache 2
Traunche 3
Tranche 4

November 9, 2020
Tranche 1
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

February 5, 2021
Tranche 1
Tranche 2
Tranche 3
Tranche 4

Muarch 31,2027
March 30, 2028
March 30, 2029
March 30, 2030

March 31, 2028
March 31, 2029
March 31, 2030
March 31, 2031

September 30, 2028
September 30, 2029
September 30, 2030
September 30, 2031

November 8, 2028
November 8, 2029
November 8, 2030
November 8, 2031

February 18, 2029
February 18, 2030
February 18, 2031
February 18, 2032

August 19, 2029
August 19, 2030
August 19, 2031
August 19, 2032

November 9, 2029
November 9, 2030
Movember 9, 2031
November 9, 2032

February 3, 2030
February 3, 2031
Febraary §, 2032
February 3, 2033

45.00%
45.00%
45.00%
45.00%

40.30%
46.30%
46.30%
46.30%

45.00%
45.00%
45.00%
45.00%

45.00%
45.00%
45.00%
45.00%

45.00%
45.00%
45.00%
45.00%

49.60%
49.60%
49.60%
49.60%

52.70%
52.70%
52.70%
52.76%

52.70%
52.70%
32.70%
52.70%

64.08
64.08
64,08
64.08

110.00
110.00
110.00
110.00

154.04
154.04
154.04
154,04

154.04
154.04
154.04
154.04

290.48
290.48
290.48
290.48

290.48
290.48
29048
290.48

29048
290.48
290.48
260.48

29048
290,48
250.48
29048

82,30
82.30
82.30
82.30

111,
1.
111,
111,

11,
A0
111,
111,

11}

10
10
10
i0

10

10
10

213,60
213.60
213.60
213.60

213.60
213.60
213.60
213.60

185.20
185.20
185.20
185.20

193.80
1931.80
193,80
193.80

193.80
193.80
192.80
193.80

6.94%
T13%
7.28%
7.40%

T.M%
7.12%
7.22%
7.30%

6.31%
6.46%
6.59%
6.70%

0.25%
6.43%
6.59%
6.71%

6.08%
6.23%
6.35%
6.44%

5.52%
5.77%
3.97%
6.12%

5.31%
5.58%
3.81%
5.99%

5.63%
5.89%
6.10%
6.27%

38.08
43.26
47.22
50.68

56.07
61.43
60.18
70.42

42.37
48.42
53.90
58.86

124.09
132,58
140,16
146.93

82.04
93.50
103.81
113.13

68,68
T.33
88.91
97.52

78.6)
89.76
99.74
108.67

7%.47
50.68
100.6%
109.64

Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during & period. The measure of volatility used in option pricing models is the
annualised standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of retum on the share over a period of time. Expected volatility approximates historical volatifity.

This space is itentionally fefl Mk

@ﬁ é@%\‘




Fusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Nofes (o Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

42

Related party disclosare

Names of the refated party and nature of relationship:-

Deserijion of relationship

Key Mavagement Personnet*

Designation

Managing Director and Chiel Executive Qfficer
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Director

independent Direclor

Nominee Directlor

Additional Direclor

Lntities with common direclors

Sharcholder

Entities exercising significant inflsence over the
Company

Post Employment benefits

plan

Sharcholder

Gratuity Trust

{RRs in millions unless otherwise stated)

As af Mareh 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Devesh Sachdey
Gaurav Maheshwari
Deepak Madaan

Devesh Sachdev
Ciivuray Maheslowari
Deenak Madaan

Pradip Kumar Saha®*
Ms. Namrata Kanpl*#%

Pradip Kumar Saha

Ms. Ratna Vishwanathan 1s, Ratna Vishwanathan

Mr. Marendsa Ostawal

Mr, Narendra Ostawal

Mr. Keaneth Dan Vander Weele Mr. Kameth Dan Vand

M. Namrata Kaul

Creation Investinent
Fusion, LLC,
Creation Investment
Fusion 1, LLC,

Creation Investment
Fusion, LLC,
Creation Tovestment
Fusion 11, LLC,

Honey Rose
Investment [id
Fusien Micro Finanee
Private Limited
Employees Group
Gratuity Trust Fund

Honey Rose
Iavestment Lid
Fugion Micro Finance
Private Limited
Employees Group
Gratuity Trust Fund

* Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning and exercising power to divectly of indirectly control the
activities of the Company and its employees. The Company considers the members of the Board of Directors which inelude independent directors and Executive
Committee to be key management persennel for the purposes of End AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.
#* Pradip Kumar Saha has resigned w.e.f. February 05, 2021

**# Namrata Kaul was additional director till July 27, 2020 and is regularised as Independent Director w.e.f July 28, 2020,

Summary of related party transactions during the year

Name of the related party

My. Devesh Sachdey

Mr. Gaurav Maheshwari

Mr. Deepak Madaan

Creation Investment Fusion, LLC,

Chicago, U.S.A.

Creation Investiment Fusion 11, LLC,

Chicago, U.8.A.

Honey Rose lnvestment Lid ("Warburg Pincus"}
Nitins Gupla

Pradip Kumar Saha

Ms. Ratna Vishwanathan

Ms. Namrata Kaul

Tusion Micro Finance Private Limited
Employees Group Grawity Trust Fund

Terms and conditions

Nature of transaction

Manageria} remuneration
Aliotment of equity shares
Renumeration
Remunerafion

Reimbursement of Travelling Expenses

Alotment of equity shares (including share premiom}

Allotment of equity shares (including share prenijum}
Sitling fees

Sitling fees

Reimbursement of Fravelling lixpenses

Sitting fees

Sitting fees

Ehvestment

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and at normal commercial ferms.

For the year ended
March 3%, 2021

For the year cncdecd
March 31, 2020

2591

6.51
342
0,10

0.48

0.60
0.47
1.8

13.45
0.84
4.18
1.97

0.15

1,400.00

3.600.00
0,10
0.52
0.05
.37
007

19.00

As the provision for gratuity, leave compensation and share based compeasation is made for the Company as a wiole, the amount perlaining to the Key Management
Personnel is not specifically idestified and hence is net included above.
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43 Financial instruments - fair value and risk management

A, Tinancial instruments by eategory

The following table shows the catrying amounts and fair values of financial assels and finaneial labilitios,

Particulars

Financial assefs:

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances olher than cash and casl eguivalents
Trade receivables

Loans

Other {inancial assets

Financiak linbilities:

Trade payables

Debit securities

Borrowings (cther than det securities)
Subordinated liabilities

Other financial liabilitics

Particutars

Financial assets:

(Rs in millions unless otherwise stated)

As al March 31, 2021

Carrying value at

. Fair value
Amaortised cost o

12,154.20 12,154.20
1,198.36 1,198.36
27.93 27.93
43,607.30 45,195.17
300,76 306,76
51,288.55 58,876.42
113.06 113.06
9,904.50 10,328.61
33,250.79 33,401.40
1,167.23 1,270.76
1,205.98 1,265.98
45,701.54 46,379.81

Ag at Mareh 31, 2020

Carrying value af

. Fair vatue
Amortised cost

Cash and cash eguivaients 5,396.67 5,396.67

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,780.82 2,780.82

Trade receivables 31.39 31.39

Loans 33,420.73 33,545.28

Investments 5.00 5.00

Other financial assets 238.46 238.46

41,882.07 41,997.62

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables 40.71 40,71

Debt securities 3,998.98 4,173.02

Borrowings (cther than debt securities) 24,571.58 2411175

Subordinated liabilities 1,160.29 1,285.47

Other financial liabilities 513.28 513.28

30,290,84 30,790.23
B, Falr value hierarchy of assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilitics which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As al March 31, 2021 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans 43,607.30 - 435,195.17 - 45,195.17
43,607.30 - 45,195,17 - 45,195,17

Financial liabilitics:

Debl securitivs 9,904.50 - 10,328.61 - 10,328.61

Borrowings (other than debt seeuritics) 33,250.79 - 33,401.40 - 33,401.40

Subordinated labilities J,107.21 - 1,270,796 - 1,270.76
44,322.50 - 45,000.77 - 45,000.77

Assels and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As al March 31, 2020 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financinl assets:

Investments (at amortised cost) 5.00 5,00 - - 5.00

Loans 33,428.73 - 33,545.28 - 33,545.28
33,434.73 5,00 33,545.28 - 33,55(.28

Financial liabilities:

Debt seearities 3,598.98 - 4,173.02 - 4,173.02

Borrowings (other (han debt securities) 24,571.58 - 24,777.75 - 24,7715

Subordinated ligbilities 1,166.29 - 1,285.47 - 1,285.47
29,736.85 - 30,236.24 - 30,236.24
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(Rs i millions unless oltherwise stated)
The management assessed that carrying value of {inancial assets (exeept loan and investments) and financial Habilities (except debt secwities, bomowings (other than
debt securities) and subordinated Liabilities) approximate their fair value Targely due 1o short ferm manyritics of these inswuments

Yaluation framework
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Levet L Jinputs that are quoled market prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Eabilities.

Level 2 ¢ The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the uge of observable
market dala either directly or indireetly, sueh as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the fall term of the financial instrument
but do not qualify as Level T inputs. 1€ all significant inputs required (o fair value an instrament are observable (he instrument is included in level 2.

Level 31 1 one or more of the signifieant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. Thal is, Level 3 inputs incorporate market
participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that risk. The Company develops Level 3 inpuls based on the
best information available in the circumstances.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash {low models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark
interest raies, eredil spreads and other premium used in estimaling discount rates and expected price volailities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques s to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price (hat would be received to sclt the asset or paid to tamsfer the liabitity
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair vatues of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash flow models that incorporate assumplions for credit risks, probability of default and loss given
definhl estimates. The Company vses historical experience and other information used in its collective impairment medels. The credit risk is applied as a top-side
adjustment based on the collective impairment model incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults.

There have been no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

Transfers of financial asscts

Sccuritization Transactions:

Dhiring the previeus year, the Company had entered inte securitization amangement with various parties. Wherein, the Company has transferced a pool of loan portfolio,

which does not fullil the derecognition criteria specified under IND AS 109 as the Company has net substantially trassferred 1isk and rewards with respect to these
assel. The company bas continued to secoprise the transferred asset in its entivety and had recognised a financial liability for the consideration received.

The value of financial assets and liabilities:

Carrying amount

Securitisation Asse(s - Loans  Liabilities - Borrowings

As at March 31, 2021 - -
As at March 31, 2020 281,32 400.26

The carrying vatue of seeuritized loans approximate their fair value.

Assigniment {ransactions:

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has sold some loans and advances as per assignment deals, as a sowrce of finance, As per the teans of deal, since
the derecopnition criferia as per Ind AS 109, including transaction of substartially all the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred 10 fhe buyer being met, the
assets have beens derecogaized,

The management has evaliated that the impact of fhe assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business plan, the
Company's business model temains to hold the assets for cellecting contractual cash flows,

The table below summarises the canying amount of the derccognized financial assets and the gain on derecognition, per type of asset:

Assienment Carrying amount of Gain from
SSig dereeognized financial assels derecognition
For the year ended March 31, 2021 1,180.20 107.84
For the year ended March 31, 2020 . 3,522.17 271,58

Since the Company transferred {he above financial asset in a transfer that qualified for derecognition in its entively, therefore the whole of the interest spread (over the
expected life of the asset) is recognized on the dale of derecognition itsell as inlerest strip reccivable and correspondingly recopnised as profit on derecognition of
financial asset.

This space Is intentionally left blank
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45 Fizmncdal visk managemen

e

Risk is an interal pan of the Conmpany’s business sad sound risk managenmont is Ay 4 Mnancial ivtesmediany, the Company is expesed te xisks that are particular 1o ks tending and the eaviromment within which it
operates and primarity inchudes credit, liquidity aod warket vsks, The Compaty hos a risk mmiagement policy which covers visks assockited with the financiat asscts and liabilities. The risk nmsagesment policy is approved by the boasd
of directors.

The Company has identified and implemented comprchensive policies and pracedure to assess, monitor and manage risk wongh-ont Company. The risk management proces
cantext of changi k scenario aid the apility of the
landseape ot event driven basis.

s i continuons|
sk management process is moenitored msd reviewed for i appropristencss in e changing risk landscape. The preccss of eontinnons ©

iewed, improved and adopted in fhe
tion ol 5 inchides stock of the risk

alu

The Compatty has an elaborale process Tor risk management. Major tis

identified by the businesses snd Tnetions i systematically addressed throuph nitipating actions on & continuing basis,

Risle nuanagement framework

The Company's board of diectors has everalt responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framewerk, The beard of direclors has estabiished the risk m
responsible for developing ant menitoring the Company s risk management pelicies. The committee veports regularly 10 the board of direetors on its activities.

Eficient and timely management of visks invelved in the Company's activitics is critical for the finanelal soundness and profitability of the Company, Risk management involves the idendifying, weasuring, menitoring and managing of
visks on a regular basis, The objective of risk management is 10 increase shareholders' value mdl achieve 3 retin on equity that is commensurate with the risks assumed. o achieve this chjective, the Company emplays Teadi sk
management practices and reciuits skilled and expericiced people.

ement commiliee, which is

The Company’s risk policics are established (o identify and analyse (he risks faced by the Company, 1o set approprisle risk limits aud controls and to monilor risks and adberenee to limits. Risk management policies and
syslems are veviewed regulady Lo veflect changes in warkel conditions and the Company's activitics. The Compauy, thvough its training and management standards andt procedures, aims (o maintain a disciplined and conshustive
conteal environment i which all ciployees und T thelr roles and obli

The Company's audit oo oversees how itons compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews 1he adeg of the risk 1 vk i relation to the risks
faced by the Company. The aulil committec is asyisted in its overzight role by interal audit that undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reponted to the agdil
caminilice.

e

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from delaubts by our borrowess under our loan agreements. i ovder 1o address credit risk, we have stringent credit asscssment pelicies for elient sclection, Measures such as verifylug client
details and wsage ol credit bureaw data to get information on past credit belavionr also supplement the eflorts for comaining oreddit risk, We also follow a systematic methodology i The opentiig of new branches, which tikes into
acconnt faclors sueh as the demand for credil in the area; income and market potential; and sosio-cconomic and law and orler zisks in the propesed arca. Furiher, our client due diligence procedures encompass viious Inyers of
checks, designed to assess the quality of the proposed group and to confiun that ey meet our criteria.

The Company is & raral focused NBFC-MP1 with a geographically diversified presence in India and offer income generation losms under the joint Hability proup model, predominantly to women from low-itcome households in Rural
Areas. Further, as we focus on providing micro-loans in nwral areas, our Tesulis of operations aro aliected by the performance and (hie filare growth potential of microfinanec in rral India, Our clients Lypically have linited sowrces of
income, savings and credit Wislories and our loans are typically provided fice af collateral. Such clients generally do not have a high level of financial resilience, and, as a result, they can be adversely affected by dectining coonomic
ceaditions and natural ealamitics. In addition, we rely on non-traditional guasasitee mechanisms rather than 1angible assets as collateral, which tay net be effective i recovering he value of eur loans.,

The Company’s ckpesure to credi risk is influenced mainly by (e individual cb of vach customer, However, mat 850 iders the factots that may infhaenee the eredit risk of ifs customer base, includtng e
defoult risk associated with the industry. A finaneial asset is "eredit-impaited” when onc or more cvents that have  detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occuned. Evideice that a finaneial
Lis eredit-impaired includes the following observable data:

nificant Giuancial difficulty of the borower or issher)

+ & breach of contract uch as & defaull or past due event;

“The Company belicves that the Micro finance loans (MEL) have shared visk cf istics (i.c. | across various states in India. Similarly, the MSME Joans are considered (e have shared sk chamcteristics. Accordingly,
the Company believes that these product categoiies are the best measuse of credit risk concentration. Refer note 6 for the product wisc loan balances.

As a busingss praclice, the Compay routinely provides top-up koans or consclidate the existing dues of the cuslomers inle a new loan. In determining whether there has been a sighificant inercase in eredis risk or impainment of these
foans and potential full oss estimale, the Company takes into account Hieir vintage, past repayment belaviour, and viabiliyy of their businesses. Based on such assessmenl, as at 31 March 2021, and in accordance with Ind AS 109
prineiples, inchuding those refating to moxdificd oans, the Company has classified loans amounting to Rs. 2,133 mifiion as Stage 2 and Rs. 1,153 million as Stage 3 and recorded impaiment allowance of Rs. 1,153 million, although
there weie Nil overdue as per (he fatest repayinient schedule Sor these toans.

{a) Probal:dlity of defawit (PD)

PD deseribes fie probability of a loan to cventually falling into stage 3. PD percemlage is enlcalated for eniie Joan portfolio and is detormined by using availabls histerical ohservations,
P1) for stage L: is derived as percentage of all loans n sage | moving into stage 3 in 12-months' time,

1D for stage 2: is derived as porcentage of all loans in stage 2 moving into stage ) in the maximum lfefime of the loars under observation.

PD for stage 3: s clerived as 100% considering hal the defauh oocurs as soon as the loan becomes overdue for 90 days which maiches the definition of stage 3.

Macroecononic information (such as regulaiory changes, market interest rate or inflation) is incorporated a5 pan of e fuemad assessment . i general, it is prosumed thal credit sk has significantly increased sinee initial recogatition
il the payaents arc more than 30 days past due,

(h) Exposure at defaule (EAD)
LAD is the sum of outstanding jrrincipal and the interest ansount accred but not received on each loan as at reporting date.

{r) Loss given default (LGD)
The Company deleaniugs ils recovery rates by analysing (he recovery trends over different periods of time afler a loan is considered eredit impairod. Recovery rate is the total of discounted vatue of 8l the recoveries on the credit
imygraired Inan account divided by the cutstanding of the toan accennt afler ils first default, LGD = 1 - {Recovery rie).

(d) Significant fnerease tn eredit risk

‘The Company continuously smonilors alt asscts subjeet to ECL. In order 1o detenmine whether an instrament or a portfisio of insteuments is subjeet to 12 months BCL or fife time ECL, the Company assesses whelhier there hay been a
signilicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Regardiess of the ehange in eredit grades, if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credil risk is deemed to have inercased signilicantly since
yeeoguition.

¢) BEspected eredit foss on Loans

The Company measures (he amownt of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects au unbiased and probabifity-weighted amount, The Company eonsiders ils historleal loss expetience and sdjusts the same for curent
observable data. The key inpuls inte the measmement of BCL are the probability of default, loss given defiuk and expesure at default. These parameters are derived from the intermal assessiment of the historical data, In sddition, the
Company uses reasonable ang supportable inft ion on fiture ic conditions includi omic fretors sueh as ntenest rates, gross domeste product, Inflation and expected direction of the vconomic cycle. Since
incorparating these forward looking infermation inereases the judgment as to hiow the changes in thesc macroeconomic factor will affect ECL, the methodotogy and assumptions are reviewed regulasty.

The Company has applied & threc-stage approach to measure expected eredit losses (ECL) on Yoans, Assets migrate Urough following theee stages based on the changes in eredit quality sinee intial recogaition:

i} Stage 1; 12- months ECLL: For exposures where there s no significant inerease in crodit risk sinee inttiat recopnition and that are not credit-impaired upoit erigination, the portion of the fifelime ECL associated with e probability of
<lefasitt events occuning within the noxt 12- months is recognized.

ii) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL, not credil-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been 4 significant increase in evedit risk sinee initial recognition but arc net eredil-impaired, a lifetime BCL s recoanized.

iif) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL, ciedil-impaired; Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired wpon occurrence of one or more cvents thal iave a detrimental smpact an the estimated future cash flows of thal asset. For financial assets
that have become credit-impaired, o lifetime E

'L is recopnized and interest revenue i caloulated by applying the effective interest rate 10 the amortised cost,
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(I millions unkess olhewise stated)
At each wwpedting date, the Company assesses whether there las been a significamt increase in credit risk of its financial assets since initlal recopnition by comparing the risk of default oceusring over the expected life of the asset. In
determining whether credit disk has increased significandy since initiad ecognition, (he Company uses fulonnation (hat is relevant and available without wdue cosl or effon. This inchades the Compay’s inkemal assessment and
forwaril-looking information 1o assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

Expeeted eredit loss on other financial ty
The Company assesses whether the eredit risk an a fisancial asset kas inereased significantly on coflective basis, For fle parpose of collcetive evalwition of impainent, lnoneial asscts arg prouped on the basis of shared credit ¥sk
characteristics, taking Mo account dccouming instrment ype, credit sk ralings, date of initial recognition, remaining lenm Lo malkity, incustry, geographbical location of the borvewer, collaleral type, and other relevant fhetors,

The Campany meonitors changes in eredit risk by imcking published extemal eredit satings. In order (o detenming whether published satings remain up 10 dale and 1o assess whether there has been a signilicant merease by credit visk a1
1he reponting date that has not been reflocted in published ratiigs, the Company supplements tis by reviewing changes in government boud yictds together with availile press and regudatory information aliout issuers.

]

=

Liguidity risk

Liquidity visk is (he risk that the Compiny will cncounter <lfficulty i mueting the obligations associated wittt iis financial liabililies (it are sewded by defivering cash o asother Timneial asset, The Company's approach to manzsing
liguidlity is (o ensitre, tiat i will have sufficient Hquidity 10 et its liabititics when they are die, under both nermal and siressed conditions, withoul incurving unacceptable losses or risking damage o the Company's repulation,

‘The manuity schedule for all financial Habilitics and assets ave regulaly seviewed and monitored. Company has a assets liability management (ALM) policy and ALM Commilice to review and menitor Bauidity visk and ensure the
compliance with the prescribed regulatory requicement, Monitoring Hauidity risk fuvolves categorizing rif assets and abilities imo dilferent matwnity profiles and evaluating them for any mismatches in any particular maturities,
particulady in he short-tenm. The ALM Folicy prescribes the detailed guidelines for imanaging the liguidity risk.

The foltowing are the contraciuat maturities of fipancisl linbilitics at the reporting date. The antount are pross and undiscounted, and inclide contractual interest payments and exelude (he impact efneing agreements.

“ontractugt cash flow:
As al March 3, 2021 Contraclust cash flows

Up 1o ! month T1o 2 montds 2w Imoenths 3166 moahs 6 months to 1 year 110 3 years Mo Syears  Over Syears Tarat
Nan - derivitive financial Sabilities
Benowings (other than debt seeutities) 2,459.34 1,546.51 221378 697336 10,970.44 171977 52509 - 36,408.25
Debi securities 2354 160,21 47.65 157906 1,G40.46 5,389.69 247687 1,614.31 12,957.7%
Subordinated liabilities AT TI7 24.41 38.94 76.81 1,397 - - 1,535.48
(rher financial Habilitics 882,14 105.84 16.78 17840 LS9 1154 17.91 5178 1,265.98
Trade payables 66,30 46.75 - - - - - - 113.05
350849 1,872.48 2,352,590 8,769.76 Iw?dﬂ 1§,401.97 3,019.87 1,666.69 52,250.54

As it Mareh A, 2020 Lontraclual cash flows

Up 1o 1 month 1to2months  2to3 mondbs  3te 6 months G months to 1 yverr ttod veass 310 8 years Over 5 years Total
e
Non - derivative financiak liabillties
Bonowings {other than debl seenritics) 151685 1,314.27 1,926.47 541605 R,282,14 821675 291.42 2415 26,985.60
Debi securitics 12.87 56.67 () 514.56 50924 2,407.87 920.05 954,04 538190
Subordinated labilities 187 7.82 25,50 41.59 152,10 KUR.70 65678 - 1,700.46
Gther fiwanclal Habilities 32279 3943 182 61.68 81.56 - - - 51328
Trade payables 1.59 1894 12.83 1.39 - . - - 40.71
1,8G8.07 1,431.09 1,979,72 £,035,27 9.025.04 11,433.32 £,808,28 975,19 34,621

47 Market rvisk

Markel risk is the visk that the fair value or fiure cash flows of financial instuments will fluctuate duc to chianges in market vasiables such as interest rates, eredit, liquidity ete. The Company s exposed (o two lype's o market risks as
follows:

Interest rate risk

I

Interest rate xisk is the sisk that the fulare cash flows of a financial instument will flactuate because of changes in market itleiest vates, We are subject Lo inlerest rate risk, priveipally because we lend lo clients at fixed interest rates
and for periods that may differ from our fusding sources, while our borrowings are at both fixed and variable intercst rates for different periods.

We asscss and manage our inferest rale risk by managing our assels and liabilities. Qur Assets Liability M Committee evaluates assei liabilily management, and enswres that alt sighificant mismatehes, if any, are being
managed apprepristely. The Company has boad approved Agset |Liabifity Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rale risk and policy for delermwining the inerest rate (o be chatged ot the loan given,

The folowing tabic demensirates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible chavige in the interest wles on the portion of borrowings affected. Wilh all ofher variables hield constant, the profit before tax is affeesed through the impact on
floaling rale bonowings, as follows:

Finance Cost March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
{1.50 % Increase 68.87 48.90
0,50 % Decrease (GR.87) (4%.90)

(1) Price Risk

The Company's exposwie to price risk is nol matexiat and it is primarily on aceount of investaent of temporary treasury swiplus in the highly Hquid debt finds for very short durations. Ve Comypany has a board approved policy of
investing its surphus fands in highly rated debt mumal funds and ofher instruments having fusignificant price risk, not beisg equity fimds/ risk bearing instruments.

4

&

Capital Management Risk

The Company's objective for capital management is 1o maximize sharcholder's value, safeguard business conlinuity, meet the regulatory requivement pnd support the growih of the Company, The Company detensines tie capital
requirement based on mwnial operating plans and long-term and other sirategic investuent plans, The fimding requirements are met through borrewings, rolained esmings and opevating cash Nlow sencrated.

As an NBIC-MFL, the RIBI requires us (o maintaire o sinimuim capitat to risk weighted assets mtio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier 1 and Ticr Il capilal of 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets. Further, the 1otal of owr Tier {1 capital
caunot exceed 100% of owr Tier 1 capital at any point of time. (refer note 54) The Capltal management process of the Company ensures 1o maintain to healthy CRAR at a¥l the time,

The Company has a hoard approved policy on resource plaming which states that (e resource planning of the Company shall be based en the Asset Liability Management (ALM) requirement, The policy of the Company ox 1esource
planniug will also cover the cbicetives of e regulatory reaqui . The policy ) ibes the sources ol funds, hreshold for mix Gom various sources, fenire manner of raising the funds ete,

For the purpose of fhe Company's capital management, capital inclades cquity share capilal and ether cquity. Trebt includes tenns Joans fiom banks, NBFC and debentures net of cash and cash equivatents and bk balauces other than
cash ad cash equivalents, The Company menitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio.

Gearing Ratig;

Particalars Asat As Bl
March 31, 2021 Mareh M, 2020

Net Debr? 31,343.33 21.784.05

Tolal cquity 12,463.55 11,988.89

et debt 10 cquity ratio 2.51 1.82

* Net Debl inchudes debt securities -+ bormowings ather than debt soenrities 1+ Subordinated liakilities + interest acented - cash and cash equivatents - bank balances other than eash atd cash cequivalents,
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Contingent Liabilities, commitments and contingent asscls

Contingent liabilities

Comynitments

Contingent assets

Thete are no commitments as ai March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

There are no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

There are no contingent assels as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

{Rs in millions uniess otherwise stated)

The company has reviewed all litigations having an impact on the financial position, where applicable, has adequately provided for where provision are

required . As on March 31 2021, the Campany does not have any material litigation pending with Income tax authorities, Goods and service authoritics

and other statutory suthorities in the ordinary cousse of business requiring any provision 1o be provided in books of accounts.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Type of services

Facifitation fees (vefer note 26)
Income from business correspondence services (refer note 26)
Income from market support services (refer note 29)

Total

Geographical markets
India

Outside [ndia

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
Service transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

Total

Reccivabies

Facilitation fees

Incowme from business cortespondence services
Income Trom market support services

Total

The company had elected to exercise the option permitted under section 11SBAA of the Income Tax Act,

{Amendment) Ordinance 2019.

This space is intentionally leff blank
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For the year ended
Marech 31, 2021

For the year ended
Marcl 31, 2020

5.08 7.18
2.1t 27406
14539 7410
152.58 108.74
152.58 108.74
152.58 108.74
152.58 108.74
152.58 1H08.74
3.56 £.01

- 0.67
23.84 29.18
27.40 30.87

1961 as introduced by Taxation lLaws
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52 Leases (Rs in mitlions unless otherwise stated)

Company as a lessee

During the linancial year 2020-21, the Company had entered into new head olfice lease arsangements in Gurugram, the lease qualify for recogaition under Ind AS 116. The head
office premises have been obtained on a non cancellable Jense term of (hree years which is extendable up o tine years with an escalation clause at a three years interval. There are
1o sub-leases, Lease tentals of Re. 110,79 mitlions for year ended March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 - Rs. $7.89 millions) perizining to short-lerm leases has been directly debited to
statement of profit and loss. In terms of applicability of Ind AS 116, the Company has availed exemption on the branch lease arrangements which fall wder short tenu lease
ﬂl'I'ﬁ.llgCll'lUl\lS.

Setout below are the canying amounts ol Right of use assel recognized and the movements during the period (Refer note 13):

Particulars Right of use asset
As at April 1, 2019 -
Addition -
Deprecialion -
As at March 31, 2020 -
Addition £3.45
Depreciation 5.26
As at March 31, 2021 78,19

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Jease abilities and the mavements during the period: (Refer note 19)

Parficulars Lease lability (vefer note 52)
As al April 1, 2019 B
Addition .
Accretion of interest .
Payments -
As at March 31, 2020 -
Addition $3.45
Accretion of Inleress 5.30
Payments 4.12
As at March 31, 2021 84.63

The following are the amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense of Right of use asse: 5.26
Interest expense on lease lability 5.30
Total amount vecognized in profit or loss 10.56

Set out below are the undiscounted potentinl future rental payments refating to perieds foilowing the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in (he
lease tern:

Particulars Upto I month 1 to 2 montbs 2 fo 3 months 3 to 6 months 6 months to I year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over § years Total

Lease Liabilities G.30 0.30 0.30 0.92 1.59 i1.34 17.91 5178 84.63

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10.72% with maturity between September 2020 - November 2029,

Cansequent te the outbreak of CoVID-19 pandemic, the Indian Government announced & lock-down in March 2020. Subsequently, the national lock-down was lified by the
government but regional tock-downs continue 1o be implemented in areas with a significant number of CoVID-19 cases. The impact of CoViD-19, including changes in consumer's
behaviour and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on business and individual activitics has led sigaificant volatility in Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in local
cconomic activities. The Company's performance will depend on further developments, which are wicertais, including, amonyg other things, new information congerning the severity
of the CoVID-19 pandemic including the current "second wave” that has significantly incrensed the sumber of cases in India and any action 10 contain its spread or mitigate its
impact.

Further, in accordance with Reserve Bank of India guidelines refating to "CoV1>-19 Regulatory package” announced on March 27, 2020 April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2620, the
Company has offered moratorinm on the payment of ail instalments and/or interest, as applicable, falling due between Mareh 1, 2020 (o August 31, 2020 to all eligible boowers,
For all such accounts opting for moratorium, the prudential assets a classification reynnined standstill during the moratorium peried (i.e. the number of days past due shall exclude
the moratorium period for the purpose of asset classification under Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning Noems).

The Company has recorded an expected credit loss provision of Rs. 2,853.02 Mn in respect of its Joans and advances of as at March 31, 2021 based on {he information avaiiable at
this point in time 1o refiect among other things an increased risk of deterioration in macro-ceonomic factors caused by recent "second wave" of CoVID-19 pandemic. Since the
situation continue Lo evelve, its effect on the operations of the Company may be different forn that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial stalements. The Company
will contisue to closely meonitor changes in markets and future ceonomic conditions,

This space is intentionally left blank
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54 Aaditional information reguived by Reserve Bank of Indin Master IHseetion DNBR, PD, 005/03,10,119/2016-17

A Capilal to visk assels ratio (CRARY)

Pavticalars

CRAR (%
CRAR- Tier F{%)
CRAR: Tigs (%0
Anmnei af suboccdimiel debt ised as Tier ] capitat
Aduoran radsed by issue of Pempetuat Debt lstunents

Iy Expostires
i) The Company i no diredt afid isdivect exposre (o read estane sector,
i) The Company It no cxposire o eapital niorket.

£. Assels diability wanagement:

Matzrity patern of cortatn liems of assets and liabilities 2s on Mareh 31, 2021

(R anlhois sueless olietwise statsab)

Asaf
March 31, 2021

Asal

27,264

bEeF20

Mareh 31, 2020
18]

274
1,166,349

Larticulars

1-7 dlays B-14 dlays 15-30 days 116 2 months 210 3 months 3o Gomonths 6 manths o L year 203 years F1o b years {ver § years Totat
Borrownsps 534.60 62392 111229 130506 2,175.92 7,207.37 11,209.23 17,183.89 1,424.24 1 449.86 44,322.4%
Advimees* U540 65145 L5638 2,370.49 2,518 225038 [RRHTVE Y 1632108 1190 4.0 44, 925.08
#Nut of provision towards stepertorming loans and advaices
Malzrity gattern of certatn lems of assets and Habilitkes as an Marceh 31, 2020
Particolars 1-7 Jays 8-14 days 15-30 slays 1 £ 2 months 2 to 3 manths 3 to 6 months & months to ¥ year i to 3 years 3to 5 ycars Over 8 years "Total
Bonowings 4204 220.12 LR A M 558.64 L745.346 5,192.23 B,985.62 1LI67.35 3738 2000 29.936.85
Advinees® 305 295 512 BAK 2,597.60 6,164.90 1519671 1397845 183t - 34,152.66
Ivestinonts - - . - - - - so00 - - S.40
# Nl of provisten towards nen-pecfsoning loans mid advances
4L Information on instances of frand ;
Fustarices of frawd reproried duving the your vided Marc 31, 2021
Natuve ol frawid No. of cases  Ampunt of frand Ltecovery™ Amount provided
Cash Fnbezsdeman 170 974,795 S1E3,900 45,90,895
“inclides recoverics in respect of Rals reported B cartia yeaes
fnstances of frod reported diping the year ended Morch 31, 2020
Nature of fraud No, ol cases  Amousnt of frawi Recovery* Anmoent pravided
Cash Binbersbemont 147 ST 500 2016,533 28,91,067
#incliudes recoverics i respect of Trauds reported in carlier years
c. Raglngs assigned by crodil vating agencles and migraton of ratings during the year:
Particulars Amount Credit Rating Apeney Date of Ratisy Valid iy 10 Curzent Rating Provions Rating
Bank Loan Rating 1460000 Credit Analysis & Research Ltd, Jn-2 See Nate | CAREA-; CARL A~ Positive
Stable
Bank Loan Rating 10000.00 CRISIL Limited D20 See Noe i CRISIL A -; CRISIL A - (Stablc}
(Stabicy
Cashe Crudit 40000 Credit Anglysis & Research Lid, Jan-23 See Note | CAREA- Posilive
Stable
Nou - Convartible Debentire 0000 Crodit Analysis & Research L. Jun-20 See Nole -
Non ~ Convirtible Debentire (MLD}Y 25000 Credit Anntysis & Research Lid. dn-21 See Nole ! CARE PP-MLD A~ CARE PP-MLD A-;
Stable Pasitive:
Nou - Conventible Debenure RRRCH ICRA Limiled Dec-20 See Mow [BCRAJA-(Stble) [ICRAJA-{Stabte)
Noat - Convertible Debemnre GO0 Credit Analysis & Research Lid. Muar-21 See Nowe b AR -
Subordinate Dudn (NCD) Juoen Credit Analysis & Rescarch Lid. Jim-21 See Note 1 T A (S1able) CARE A~ Posilive
inate Dot (NCD) SO0 ICRA Litnitd Dec20 See Note 1 {ICRAJA-(Subic) [ICRAJA-(Stable)
wion Gracing NA CARE Advisory Rescarch and Training L, febe2l Peb-22 MU | (One ML 1 (One)
403,70 LCRA Limited May-19 Jun-2¢ . {ICRA} AA(SO)
2240 ICRA Limited May-19 Ang-2¢ [ICRA] AA-{SO}
343.00 LCRA Limited May-19 Felr-20 [ICRA] AAA(SQ)
19,10 ICRRA Limited May-19 May-20 - [ICRA) AA(SOD)
39110 TCRA Limited Jun-19 Jut-20 - HCRA] AA{SO)
Securitization 1u ICRA Linnited Jun-19 Ang-20 [ICRA)AA-(SO)
Secutitizti S1viu ICRA Limited Jun-19 Apr20 - HCRAL AA+(S0)
Secutitization 32 HRA Limiwd Jun-19 Jun-20 - fICRA] AA(SO)
Securitization 49520 ICRA Lintited Tun-19 Feb-20 - FICRA} AAA(SQ)
Secutitiztion 27.80 ICRA Limdied Jun-19 Apr20 - HERA] AASO)
Sccutitiztion S350 ICRA Limiled Dee-19 Aug-20 - [ICRAASO)
Securilization 3030 1CRA Limiled D14 Sep-20 - [ICRAIBBB+(E0)
Note 1: Reting is subject to mmual smvellanee 1331 final rpaymentfredemption of rated facilitics
1, Disclosure of Complaints
No, of Complaluts
b "
Particulars Mareh 31,2021 Mardh 31, 2020
Wo. el conyloints pending i the beginning of the year 44 14
No. of comyslaints roceived during the year i 721
No. of couplains redressd during i yer Hu7 o9t
No. of comphuins ponding ot the end of the year 14 44
# Cencentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
Asal As al

Particalars

Concentration of Advances
Total sdvances 10 tvenly largest borrowas

{%) of advanees W ety largest bomrowars to tola) advanges
Concentration of Exposures

Total exposure o {wonty larges) bomowers

{56 of exposines 10 twenly largest bonewers Lo total posre
Concentration of NPAs

Tolal cxposure 1o top four NPA

acLownts

t

K@J oA

Mareh 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

1504
0.u3%

1834
0.0M5

0.7z

6.46
0.02%

6.46
0.02%

0.2




Hied
he year ended Marel 31, 2021

(R i millions unbess odicewv e stgal)

I Sector whee NPAs

%o pf NI'A 10 tolal advances iy ihal seclor

Fartiealars

Asat Asat

Mareh 31, 2021 Mareh 33, 2020

Apricalure & oltied activities if 229 0.37%

MEMIE COATER 7%
Carporite brmowas NA
Survives 5%,
Unseatieed persanad Toans NA
Awie ki N
Other persentitt loas NA

# inciuckimg nsmufaciuring & production, tude & retail, C8 ind otbers.

I Moveinent of NPA's
Particulars March 31, 2421 Alwrch 3, 20248

i) Bel NPA (o nel advances perew 2.20% 0.39%
i) Movanent of NPAs (Gross
a1) Opening bakuce 38451 404,24
by Additions diring Ul 251045 13232
©} Redaction during the year {write oy {326,016} {352.0%)
) Closing bakanee L5890 384.51
ki) Moveniont of not NPAs
i) Opening bakuce 1Ay 144,53
itions during the year BI20 {14.06)
n dluing 1he year ) .
) Closing batwce 1,023.46% 130,47
) Muvement of provisions Tor NPAs (exchuling provisions on standard assels)
i) Opening baluce 254.4 259.71
I} Prowision: made during the year 1.607.24 34638
©} Write oflf write ek ol excess provisions (326,06 (35Z.05)
<) Closing Takance 1835.23 254.04
J- Investinonts
Particulzr Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
E Vil of Invesinents
1) Gross valie of invest mems
{a} in In - 00

(1) Outside India
(i) Provision for deprecistion -

{a} n India - .
() Outsiche Tiglia - -
i) Net vilue of investineats - -
fa} It India - 560
(b Outside Ilia N .

2. Movenicut of provisions hield towards deprecintion on investnents
Opeaing badance

Add: Provisions made sharing the year

Less: Write-af 1 write-inck of exeess provisions dwring The year - -
Closing balanee ’

J(a), Puulic disciosure on Hauidity sk management

(1}, Funding conceutralion based on siguilieant countomany *{both depasits and bomowings) Number of sipnificant cownterparties Antopit 9% of Taral Depesits % of Total Lixlilties
30 3823782 - 36.28%

Top 20 lerpe: ceposils - Not appiicahle
The Company teing a Systemienlly Tniportant Non-Deposit aking Non-Banking Pinancinl Conpany regisierad with Reserve Bank of Tudic does not aceegit public deposits,

{iii}. Top 10 borrawings (ot in milkons ad % of total bomowings)

Amgunt i al Falal Burcowings
2335406 5270%
{iv). Funding cencentvaiion bised on significan! instouma/product
Name af 1he instrnment/product Anpunt %o of Total Lizhiligies
Tean los from Banky 3035105 GRAYS
Subondinate Dedns 1,167.21 2634
TMon Convertible Debentures $,904.49 22.35%
Term Loans fram Othas Parties (NBFC 2,5%4.30 6.53%
ard Fls)
Borrowings wider Securitization - 0.R0%
AAageil
(v, Stock Ratioy
. As 3 % ol total Az a % of total As & % of 101at
Particulis 3 ) .
Tubic furds* Ualsilitices* assely
Conuerciil papees - - -
Non Cottvert ible Deentore {Griginal Maturity of less than,
e yer) - - .
Cther short-term linbili 1231% B.52%% -
(vi). Instittional set-wp for lguidity risk masaganan
The Bewd of Direcions has e overall responsibility for cstblishing the sisk i Kk for the Comprany. The Board in smm i wialilishod an ALM Co iee {ALCO) for evalunting, monstoring anl roviewing Syidity and inerest

rene sisks arising bl Compaay on bell sides of e Bolance sliet, Tie Board bastd on Tecommadations from the ALCO bas presceiled pelicie and the risk Bmits for the maagenon of quidity sisk,

ALCO G Hiee is responsible for ing the risks avisiig onl of Asset Linbility mismuches consistent with the segulatery raguirenionts and intemal sk olertiees witablished by the Board. Amengst other iesponsibilitics, ALCO has bear
empoweral W decide the finding mix for the company in light of e Ruure business strategy and prevailing market conditians. ALCO « itce is conducted o least oiee in & quarter and e ALCC minutes weteviewed by the Board from time 1o
thne.

*Notes

4. "Public Tutts® shall inclide: funds raised vither dirvetly or inclirectly tirough publc deposits, conmprcial poper, delsentures, inter-corporate deposits and bank Hnance but exelude finids mised by issue of instnnams conpuisry convatible into
xitity shars with in a pered nol exceeding 10 years from thedate olissie & defined i Regutatory Framewerk: For Core Investman Compantes issgod vie Notitication No, DNBS (P} CCNo20S03,10.004/2030-11 dated Iunary Sth, 2011,

5, The mneunt stated in this discloswre is Based on the sudited Gnmicial statenients for the year endud March 31, 2021,
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i Detadls af assignment transactions:
Particulars

Fotal no. af Joans assignod

Agpregate book vahie ol Taan assigucd

Sale considkeration receivad Ror oin assipned
Agurogae gain £ {oss) over it book valae

1. Disclosure refated (e securitization
Tarticulars

Tot no, of kens secanlizs

Agregine bovk value of foml seeurilizel

Agpregite hook vitae of Joan seearilized (nchaling MBR)Y
Sile considenion received For tomy seenritizal

Credit enhancenients provided and culstanding {Gross):
Principal subordination

Cash coltateral

Outstmiting value of Toan secaritized dunng e year

Partieulars

1 Numter of $pecial Papose ¥dhicles (SPVs) spensored by the Congrany for securiti
2Tk amowal of secaitised st

x per books of the SPVE sponsorat by the Compamys

tion Sransactions

3. Ptk amonat of esposures raniad by e Company ke comply with Minimug Retanion Rate (MRR) 23 on the date ol halanee sheet
a) OF-bakimee shoet expesures
* First toss

* Qthars

) ()n balwnce slivet exposiney

4. Amoimt of exposures 1o secavitization watsctions ofhwy tian MRIL
)Of‘) Dalance sheel lxp( mw

E lm\
* loss
i1} Exposure 10 third pinty scourilivatios
® First loss
# Qthurs
B} On-bulasice sheet exposures
i} Exposure (0 own sceuritizptions
* Firat loss
* Others
i} Exposure 1o third paty scouritizations
* First loss
¥ Othes

m. Bravisions and contingencies {shown wader expenditure In statement of profit and boss)
Partlculars

Provision Tor non-perforning lom ponfolic

Provision for stimclacel pontfulic

Provigion for insurance recoverable ad BC collection

Provision for Income Tax {net)

Prevision for cash loss

Provision for gratuity

Provision for leave bendits

n. dnfarmation an Net Iiferest Marpln

Farticalars

Average interest chorged (A)

Average elleclive cost of bonowings (8)

Net Inferest Margin (A-B)

1. Interest income considered for computation of “wvers
of interest inconwe in (he bl AS funieisl statements.

2. Average loan tilsianding
Tl AS financial statements,

. Pradential fleor for impairment toss

(R i millions uahes othonwise sistoed )

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2820
09,375 25130600
118020 sy

1, 180,20 asazay

March 31, 2021 March M, 202

- 1,40,732

- 104513
. 1172890

- 18533
- 4247

- 30,33

- 15093

As al Asal
March AL, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
- [

- S08.59
- R

- 194.64
Nareh 31, 2023 Marel 31, 2020
1,607.24 3638
589.47 567.28

- 601

128.47 053

221 572

17.3G 1zn

20.31 15.40

Mayeh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
20.45% 21.18%

IL.23% 12.33%

9.22% §.85%

interest charged” excludes Joan processing fee colooted from castamions i ecordance with para $4{vi} of the BT Master Directions, As per Bl AS 103, such laay provossing Fec forins parl

idurod for computation of “average interest charged” is gross of the Jpaimin alfowance aul uanodizal gortion of e precessing foe. As poe Iid AS 109, such iowmce is adjusted fram e Toan balaioe in Cie

Assets classification ander RDE norms Asset classification under Ind A8 Gross carvving amount as pex Tid AS Loss allowanee as vequired nnder lslr! Net canrying  Proviston m]ulm'd EH llnll)jf\r:rlo(il;:):'::‘lvs‘l:::
Mareh 3, 2021 AS amansl  por TRACP norms* .
and IRACP
[tH (1) [£h3] vy VY= - vy (K%} (VE)= (V- V)

Performing assels

Siandard assus Stage I 40,763.34 444.56 A0,314.28 428.04 2152
o Stage Il ENEYAG 868.23 2,269.35 LR 33 §59.35

Sunotal {A) 4390142 1,317.19 42,543.63 43692 ARE.87

Nan-perforsing assels

Sitli-skancard Stoge 11 2,558.90 1,535.23 1,623.67 1229 1,522.04

. Doubthd Stage 10 - - - -

Upto 1 year Stage Il - - - N

1 1e 3 yoars Stage 1l - B -

More han 3 years Suye il - - -
Loss assuts Suge il - - - - -
Sulrotal (B) ) 2,558.90 1,835.23 1,023.67 1229 1,522.54

Stage] 44,763.84 449.56 431428 428,04 24.52
. Stage 1t 3,137.58 868.23 2,2¢69.35 BAK 85925
Total Stage 2,358.90 1,535.23 1,023.67 1229 1,522.94
Totai 46,460.32 2.853.95 43,687.30 44%.21 2,403.8]
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(R~ i millions wikess ofenvise stated)

Assets chassification under IR neras N . Gruss earrying 1.oss allowance ag reruired vader Ind Net cnrying Provision required as “'"ﬁ""‘""" “"“_"‘_"“
Asset chassilication nndes Ind A8 gmount as per Ind . y . Tad AS 109 provision
Marel 31,2020 \S AS amoizt  per IACT aurms® and [RACT

(0 {n [ (v} (V= () - Ny vl (= 4V - Vi)
Perferming ussas
Standird assets Stage | IRE01.54 645,11 320623 REXWI} KA
Sape B 166,06 BI02 LGS B3} Blay
Subodal (A} 3L027.60 I4027.68 3329928 A3d.03 Ju3.69
Rest-performiing assets
Sub-standad Stage HI 449 25404 13045 125 250,19
Buoubiful Stage tR - . . .
Up s | year Stage 11
1t 3 years Stage 07 .
Mare than 3 years Srage 11 - - -
Lawy assuts Staje I B - . - .
Subtonal {13} JR4.48 254.04 13045 135 25079
Stapel ILEGESS 04531 3321623 ERXNTH Rkl
Tetal Stape 166,00 H3.02 $I04 F43 149
Stage il 384,49 254.04 13045 325 25079
Fotal 34,412,009 982,36 WAL 337,88 G454

*The provision sequirgd as per IRACP norms s et coleutatal on the apgregate loan porllie afler derecognizing e seowitised asses (e of MRR} which meets the derecogiition criteia under e previoas GAAP.

1 Details of penaltics Jmposed by RBE and vther repulators

No parlly lins beon inpasedt by RI31 and orhier tegulators on tie Company dwing the fnmicial yoor anded Maech 31, 2023 amd Maceh 31, 2020,

<, Details of wnseenred

“The Company has not given any unseciteed advance:

r. Dedails of non-performing financial assels purchased / sold

The Compauy has not purelised /£ sold any non-performing Jinaneial assets dueing the Tuoncinl year cidod Macch 30, 202 aasl Marel 31, 2020,

% Details of Single Borrower Limi (SGL) / Group Borrower Limi (GBL) exceeded by (e NBRC:

The Company lins 1o exceeded the prodemtin exposures Hiits dustng the Fnuncial year eaded March 31, 2021 and Mareh 31, 2020
1LDraw down feom veserves

There has been no draw down Trom veserves churibg the year ended March 31, 2021 and Maweh 31, 20120

a The Company docs nof have any forcipy corvency exposare andfor derivatives during the year caded March 31, 2021 aod Marek 31, 2020
v, The Company has no Joans owtstusding as of Maeh 31, 2021 and Maech 33, 2020 that are securad against gald.

. Detadls of registration: with financiad and olher reguiators

Repgulator Reglsteation anmber Date of reglstration

UGSTOMH1994PTCO61287
B-14.02857

Ministry of Corporate A Mhirs
Reserve Bauk of India

Seprember §, 1994
May 19, 2010

85 Disctosurc of Llouldily xisk managemen| 2s per B32019-28/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} ©C. No.102/03.10.801/2019-20)

inst intangitibe securities such as clirge over the ghts, licenses, authority, ele dwing the Grancial vear endod March 31, 2021 and Mach 31, 2020,

Thie requirements of the above circulur with respeet 1o the Liguidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR") have broome applicable to the Company with efteet from the quarer ended March 31,2021, Aceordingly, the Conapany Itas not caleutated and disclosel

LCR information s at end o other guaners {.e. guartars ended en June 3¢, 2020, Septeviber 30, 2020 and Decersber 31, 2020,

High Quality Edqrid Assets
1 Totol Hiph Guality Liqiid Assels (HOLA

Cash Outflows
2 Deposils {for deposit taking conpianies)
3 Unsecired whelesale fuding
4 Secnred wholesate funding
5 Additional requirements, o which
(i} Ougflows relatend 1o derivative expastives and other colfateval requivenents
(ii) Onugflows refaied 10 toss of fmling ou debt products
(i) Credir aned Hauidity fucilitles
6 Otlier conractual Rnling oblipations
7 Othet contingent finding chligations

Fotal cash ontflows
Cash Jnftows
Secured Janding

10 Inflpws from Jully pedorining exposures
11 Otlier cash inflows

12 Total cash nflows

13 Total HQLA

14 Total nel cash vulfiows

15 Lignidity Coverage ratio (%)

Following assets fored part of HQLA
Assets

Cosh on hand

Balwces wilh banks — Currenl Accounts
Total
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% _auw@wj} <
NN A

Tor quarier ended Mazch 31, 20231
Tatal alios Total welghted
ue (averape) value (averape]

- 343824
kRHENY 348300
3,028.7% 345510
791819 S5939.10
191819 5,839.10

Totat Adjusted Value

3,438.24
B70.78
394.85%

Y83
3,345.40
3,438,294
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Fusion Micere Finance Private Limited
Motes ¢ Financial Stalement for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

(Rs in millions unless otherwise sated)

56 lonble Supreme Court, in o publie interest litigation (Gajendra Sharma vs Union of India & Am), vide an interim order dated Seplember 3, 2020 Cinterim order' has
directed thut accoums elassified which were not declared NPA il August 31,2020 shall not be declared as NPA till further orders. Basis the said interiny order, the Company,
has not classified any account as NPA, as per regulatory norms, afler August 31, 2020 which was not NPA as of Augast 31, 2020. The interim order granted (0 not declare
accounts as NPA stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgment of the Hon'ble SC in the matter of Small Scale Industrial Manufacturers Association vs, sol & Ors. ind
other cennccted matters. In accordance with the instructions in paragraph § of the RB1 civeular no. RBI/2021-22/1 TDOR. STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated April 7, 2021,
the Company has cartied out asset classification of the borrower accounts as per the extant RBI instructions / TRAC norms, withowt considering any standstill in asset
classification and also done staging of the borrower accounts in accordance with ECL medel / framework under Ind AS i the financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2021,

57 RBI civeular dated April 07,2021 advised all lending fnstitations 1o immediately put in plece a Board approved policy 1o refund/adiust the interest on interest’ charged 10 the
borrowers doring (he moratorium petiod, i.e., March 01, 2020 to August 31,2020 in conformity with (he Supreme Cowrl judgement mentioned in paragraph 3 above. The
Company has not charged Interest on interest' 10 its customers during the moratorium period including those who did not avail the moratoriinn benefii, therefore there is o
amount required ¢ be refunded.

58 As per the policy on moratorivm, approved by the Board of Directors, pursnant to (he RBI circular no. DOR No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020, the
Company had not granted moratoriym fo its customers in overdue calegorics as on February 29, 2020, Accordingly, the disclosure as per prra 10 of the BB ciceular no.
DORNo.BP.BC.63/21.04,048/2020-21 dated Apeil 17, 2020 is not applicable.

whn
o

Disclosure pursuant 1o RBI Notification ~ RBL/2020-21/17 DOR No. 3P BC/4/21,04,048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020 ("Resolntion Framework for COVID-19 Relaled
Stregs") is not applicable as the Company as not testructured any loan aceounts during the year,

G

=

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever neeessary to conform to current year presehtation.

As per our report of even date
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Chartered Accountants
1CALAMN Registeation Number: 101049W/12300004

for and on behalf ol the Board of Directors of
Fusion Micre Finance Private Limited
CIN;UG5 10011094 ,0612§j

¥

N
G

£ s wa

Amit Kabra Breves ‘S,;: ey Raina Dharashree Mishwanathar
Partoer MD and CEO Director
Membership Number ; 094533 DIN : 0254711 DIN: 0727829

Deepak Mudi
Company Secretary

Place: Gumgram
Date : May 26, 2021

Place: Gurugram
Date : May 26, 2021




